Bath & North East
Somerset Council

Improving People’s Lives

Pension Board

Date: Thursday, 8th December, 2022
Time: 10.00am
Venue: Council Chamber - Guildhall, Bath

Board Members: Nick Weaver (Chair), Helen Ball (Member Representative), Steve Harman
(Employer Representative), David Yorath (Member Representative), Tony Whitlock (Employer
Representative), Stuart Anstead (Employer Representative) and Alison Wyatt (Member
Representative)

Chief Executive and other appropriate officers
Press and public

Mark Durnford
Democratic Services
Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG

Telephone: 01225 394458
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk
E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk




NOTES:
1. Inspection of Papers: Papers are available for inspection as follows:

Council’s website: https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1

2. Details of decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be
circulated with the agenda for the next meeting. In the meantime, details can be obtained by
contacting as above.

3. Recording at Meetings:-

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now allows filming and recording
by anyone attending a meeting. This is not within the Council’s control. Some of our meetings
are webcast. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is to
be filmed. If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast, please make yourself known to
the camera operators. We request that those filming/recording meetings avoid filming public
seating areas, children, vulnerable people etc; however, the Council cannot guarantee this will
happen.

The Council will broadcast the images and sounds live via the internet
www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast. The Council may also use the images/sound recordings on its
social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters.

4. Public Speaking at Meetings

The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to make their views known at meetings.
They may make a statement relevant to what the meeting has power to do. They may also
present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a group.

Advance notice is required not less than two full working days before the meeting. This
means that for meetings held on Thursdays notice must be received in Democratic
Services by 5.00pm the previous Monday.

Further details of the scheme can be found at:

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942

5. Emergency Evacuation Procedure

When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the designated
exits and proceed to the named assembly point. The designated exits are signposted.
Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people.

6. Supplementary information for meetings

Additional information and Protocols and procedures relating to meetings

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505



https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505

N oo o A~ W b

10.

11.

12.

13.

Pension Board - Thursday, 8th December, 2022
at 10.00am in the Council Chamber - Guildhall, Bath

AGENDA

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out under
Note 5.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR
ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC

ITEMS FROM MEMBERS

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING: 4TH OCTOBER 2022 (Pages 7 - 16)

EXTERNAL AUDIT - UPDATE (Pages 17 - 46)

The purpose of this report is to update the Pension Board on the draft audit findings of
the External Auditor.

BRUNEL UPDATE

The Board will receive a presentation on this item.

SUMMARY OF LIQUIDITY PROFILE

The Board will receive a presentation on this item.

ANNUAL REPORT & SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTS

The Board will receive a presentation on this item.

INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE (Pages 47 - 74)

The purpose of this report is to provide an update on Internal Audit activity since the
last report to the Pension Board on 21st September 2021.

INTERNAL AUDIT APF CYBER ESSENTIALS REVIEW (Pages 75 - 98)



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

BREACHES REPORT (Pages 99 - 112)

The purpose of this report is to update the Pension Board on the Fund’s Breaches
Policy, procedure for recording & reporting breaches, training carried out for Teams
and breaches recorded in the last year.

STATUTORY REPORTING AND YEAR END (Pages 113 - 118)

The purpose of this report is to inform the Pension Board of the actions undertaken by
the Fund Administration in completion of the 2021/2022 employer year end data
exercise and other statutory annual requirements.

UPDATE ON LEGISLATION (Pages 119 - 122)

The purpose of this report is to update the Pension Fund Board on the latest position
concerning the Local Government Pension Scheme [LGPS] and any proposed
regulatory matters that could affect scheme administration.

RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE - RISK REGISTER (Pages 123 - 128)

The purpose of this report is to update the Pension Board with the new risk
management policy and new look risk register.

PENSION BOARD WORKPLAN & TRAINING PLAN

The Board will receive a verbal update on this item.

The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Mark Durnford who can be contacted on
01225 394458.



Agenda Item 7

BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET

PENSION BOARD

Tuesday, 4th October, 2022

Present:- Nick Weaver (Chair), Helen Ball, Steve Harman, Tony Whitlock and Alison Wyatt

Also in attendance: Jeff Wring (Director - One West), Liz Woodyard (Group Manager for
Funding, Investment & Risk), Geoff Cleak (Pensions Manager), Anna Capp (Member
Services Manager), Carolyn Morgan (Governance and Risk Advisor) and Charlotte Curtis
(Governance & Risk Officer)

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and asked the Democratic Services
Officer to read out the Emergency Evacuation Procedure.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Stuart Anstead had sent his apologies to the Board.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were none.

TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR
There was none.

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC

There were none.

ITEMS FROM MEMBERS

There were none.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING: 9TH JUNE 2022

The Board approved the minutes of the previous meeting and they were duly signed
by the Chair.

BRUNEL UPDATE (VERBAL)
The Group Manager for Funding, Investment & Risk addressed the Board. She
informed them that there had been a significant level of activity following the

announcement of the mini budget by the Government and that the markets were
already sensitive prior to the announcement.

11

Pension Board- Tuesday, 4th October, 2022

Page 5



She explained that the Bank of England have now taken measures to attempt to
stabilise the markets and will at this point offer temporary support until 14t October.

She stated that to limit the impact of further collateral calls on the Fund’s LDI
portfolio following the spike in yields the decision had been made by FRMG on the
Monday (26%" Sept) to suspend further trading.

She said that Bond Yields started to rise around three to four weeks ago and at that
time a decision was taken lock some in. She added that since the announcement of
the mini budget more have been locked in.

She stated that the markets were now beginning to rally with sterling starting to
strengthen.

She said that the portfolio overall remains in a good position and it has shown how
important it is for the portfolio to be diverse. She added that there has been no
change to the Strategic Asset Allocation.

The Chair asked if she could outline the responsibilities of the Committee and Brunel
regarding the Strategic Asset Allocation.

The Group Manager for Funding, Investment & Risk replied that the Strategic Asset
Allocation is set by the Committee every three years. She said that Brunel are then
informed that, for example, the Fund wants to have 40% in equities to be split across
a range of portfolios for investment.

She added that the LDI portfolio is manged by BlackRock through a bespoke
strategy for the Fund and that this is supported through the FRMG (Funding & Risk
Management Group) which comprises of officers and advisers from Mercer. She said
that the FRMG meet at least once a month and had met on 26t Sept to take
appropriate actions.

She explained that the Committee had recently approved the Taskforce on Climate-
related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) report and that the Fund is due to respond on
this matter to the DLUHC in due course.

Steve Harman asked how our Fund’s approach differs from others within Brunel.

The Group Manager for Funding, Investment & Risk replied that on the whole they
were probably quite similar, but said that Avon has the least exposure to equity and
was the most diversified. She added that she felt in time that it was likely that asset
allocations will converge as they seek similar opportunities to invest in. She said that
Avon has a high level of risk management in place.

She stated that Brunel are working on improvements to the Fund’s reporting
processes and also that the Climate Stocktake was ongoing, with a new Climate
Change Policy expected in January 2023.

Tony Whitlock asked if recent events have had an impact on the employer funding
position.

12

Pension Board- Tuesday, 4th October, 2022

Page 6



22

23

The Group Manager for Funding, Investment & Risk replied that it had not had any at
this stage, but that it continues to be monitored.

The Chair thanked her for the update on behalf of the Board.
FUNDING STRATEGY STATEMENT 2022

The Group Manager for Funding, Investment & Risk introduced the report to the
Board. She explained that the Committee had approved the Funding Strategy
Statement (FSS) at its meeting on 23 September and that the Board is asked to
review it for compliance with the LGPS Regulations 2013 and CIPFA guidance.

The Chair asked if a number of interested parties involved with the Fund had
responded to the consultation.

The Group Manager for Funding, Investment & Risk replied that more Academies
had responded than in previous years alongside 2 Unitary Authorities and a number
of colleges. She added that conversations regarding the FSS had also been held
prior to the consultation.

The Chair asked if the Actuary was minded to reduce the prudence of his
assumptions based on feedback from the employers.

The Group Manager for Funding, Investment & Risk replied that he wasn’t and that
they did challenge him throughout the process. She said that most employers will
see a reduction in contributions. She added that if stagflation was prolonged it could
see a negative value at the next valuation. She said that if inflation persists it could
affect public sector funding significantly.

She informed the Board that they expect to receive the first results of the Actuary’s
report by the end of October / early November and that the process will conclude
finally in March 2023.

The Board RESOLVED to approve the Funding Strategy Statement 2022 and
determined that it was compliant with LGPS Regulations 2013 and CIPFA guidance.

ADMIN STRATEGY UPDATE

The Pensions Manager and the Governance & Risk Advisor addressed the Board
and gave them a presentation regarding the APF Administration Strategy & New
Operating Model. A copy of the presentation will be attached as an online appendix
to these minutes and a summary is set out below.

New Admin Strateqgy 2022

* New strategy introduced to Pension Board March 22

* Included in service plan taken to Committee in March 22

» Part of concept is to maximise digital services and achieve greater focus on
workloads

» Create new posts & career grades

13

Pension Board- Tuesday, 4th October, 2022

Page 7



Operating Model Concept and High Level Structure Chart

The new Digital Services Team will support end to end processes - Two thirds of
employers are now submitting online returns or IConnect extracts.

This will enable officers within the Member Services team to focus on specific critical
cases (eg retirements/deaths/transfers).

Officers are working with consultants currently to develop the new posts.
Discussions will take place in the future with the Human Resources team with regard
to the grading of the new posts.

The aim is to deliver the project over three phases and conclude by April 2023.
Where possible certain elements will be put in place ahead of this date.

Project Plan — Phase 1

» Set up temporary Member Contact Team (June 2022)
o 2 members of staff to triage emails and encourage use of My Pension
Online

* Review functionality of My Pension Online (October 2022)
o Explore the use of a portal
o New starters to receive activation key to My Pension Online as
standard
* Analysis of workload & resources (June 2022)

Project Plan — Phase 2

» Expand Customer Contact Team (December 2022)
o Team Leader has been appointed on a secondment basis.
o 2 members of staff to move across in October, making 5 in total

* lconnect Project
o Rollout of document portal to all existing employers (December 2022)
o Rollout of Iconnect to non IC employers (April 2023)

+ Set up Iconnect Processing Team
o Aim is to process cases to end status eg deferred, refund, aggregation
(January 2023)
o Use of bulk processes where possible (January 2023)

Project Plan — Phase 3

» Consultation & Implementation of new operating model

Review, write and approve new Job Descriptions (December 2022)
Consultation Exercise with staff (begin in January 2023)

Review all processes and workflows across Teams (April 2023)

(@)
(@)
(@)
o Update Administration Strategy (April 2023)

14
Pension Board- Tuesday, 4th October, 2022
Page 8



The Pensions Manager stated that alongside this project, officers are still trying to
manage business as usual. He added that it had been good to receive external
support for this work and that he was hopeful that career pathways with differing
grade levels could be set within certain posts.

Steve Harman asked if training would be provided to existing staff to ensure that they
have the technical expertise to carry out their roles.

The Governance & Risk Advisor replied that it would be and is within the project
plan. She added that officers were working with Heywood to have training in place
for new officers to understand the range of functionality within My Pension Online.

Alison Wyatt asked if there was a structured appraisal system in place for staff.

The Governance & Risk Advisor replied that annual reviews are held as well as 1-2-1
meetings on a monthly basis where performance and personal objectives are
discussed.

Alison Wyatt asked if there was a particular profile of the employers who were not
engaged with the Iconnect system.

The Pensions Manager replied that in general these were employers that only have
a handful of members such as Town / Parish Councils, admitted bodies and some
small colleges.

Alison Wyatt asked if officers were able support those employers to come online.

The Pensions Manager replied that training and support is available to onboard
employers. He added though that it was important to the Fund to receive this
information digitally and therefore fines would be issued to employers if necessary.

The Governance & Risk Advisor said that there is a dedicated Iconnect Team in
place and acknowledged that some employers might not have enough resources in
place. She added that if employers change their payroll provider, this can be a factor.

The Chair commented that the process does rely on employers giving data in good
time. He asked how assertive can the service be with employers to make sure we
receive the information on time.

The Member Services Manager replied that engagement with employers does take
place. She added that when employers do change payroll providers they do not
always consider how that will impact on the pensions process.

The Governance & Risk Advisor said that they have historically provided guidance to
employers on this matter. She added that changes in personnel within an employer
can also be a factor.

Alison Wyatt asked what happens if an employer decides to take payroll
responsibilities in house.

15
Pension Board- Tuesday, 4th October, 2022
Page 9



24

The Governance & Risk Advisor replied that they have the same obligation to
provide the data.

The Chair asked if the data received is measured for accuracy.

The Governance & Risk Advisor replied that a monthly verification process takes
place.

Helen Ball commented that it appeared to be a large group of small organisations
that are causing an awful lot of work for the officers. She asked if there were any
measures that could be taken to remove them from the scheme.

The Governance & Risk Advisor replied that they could not be removed as if they are
scheduled or admitted body employers they have a right to be part of the scheme.

Tony Whitlock asked how many members were currently actively using My Pension
Online.

The Pensions Manager replied that he believed that this was around 30% of
members.

The Governance & Risk Advisor added that as part of the new process all new
members will be set up with a My Pension Online account.

The Chair thanked both officers for their presentation on behalf of the Board.
PENSION FUND ADMINISTRATION
The Pensions Manager introduced the report to the Board.

He informed them that officers had this week returned to the Keynsham Civic Centre
following its refurbishment with 46 workstations available for them to use. He said
that the intention is that staff will come into the office for a minimum of two days a
week or pro-rata if part-time.

He stated that the Fund continues to operate below its desired target of >90% for
most case types and the case-by-case breakdown demonstrates an overall general
maintenance from the previous quarter. He added that generally, however, KPI
benchmarking performance has declined over the past year.

He said recruitment and retention remain a key factor impacting business operations.
Employer Services currently have 5 FTE vacancies and Member Services team have
4 FTE vacancies, in addition the Technical & Compliance Manager post has now
been re-advertised. He added that the administration is also carrying three maternity
absences across the service.

He explained to mitigate operational workload some project work had already been
outsourced, in particular; the GMP reconciliation project and the address tracing
project. He added that consultancy engagement had now been procured to provide
ongoing support with the McCloud remedy and the Annual Allowance tax charges
review project.

16

Pension Board- Tuesday, 4th October, 2022

Page 10



25

He stated that 98% of Annual Benefit Statements have now been issued and that as
part of the digital transformation project 11,384 statements were published digitally to
members signed up with access to My Pension Online.

He informed the Board that 100% of Employer year end returns had now been
received and the team have completed all required checks and validations before
submitting to the scheme actuary.

He said that data for the 2 Unitary Authorities had now been received in relation to
McCloud, but that there are still a number other employers who have not supplied
their data and officers continue to chase. He added that we will now be part of a
working group with the LGA and other admin authorities to tackle common issues
regarding employers that are unable to return data.

He explained that the Address Tracing project had now concluded and that there
Business as Usual processes in place to manage the ongoing tracing of new “Gone
Away” members. He said that this will be supported by the new Digital Strategy that
is being rolled out by the fund over the next 12 months.

He commented that gathering the benchmarking data can take a considerable
amount of officer time and that they were in the process of testing new software
(Insights) that would provide real-time information with results expected to feed in by
the end of the financial year.

The Chair said that he also felt it was good to see the CIPFA standard reports.

The Pensions Manager said that Insights will report on both CIPFA standards and
local SLAs.

The Pension Board RESOLVED to note the Fund performance for the three months
to 30th June 2022.

CIPFA REPORTING

The Pensions Manager addressed the Board and gave them a presentation
regarding CIPFA Benchmarking. A copy of the presentation will be attached as an
online appendix to these minutes and a summary is set out below.

He said that the Fund has taken part in CIPFA’s benchmarking gathering exercise
for over 15 years. He explained that when they began more than 90% of Funds took
part, but now only approximately 20 had.

He stated that the cost of participating in the exercise was around £2,700 (supplier
£1k / APF resource £1.7k) plus officer time — approximately 74hrs across the admin
team.

He explained that the report was quite difficult to interrogate and to extract data from.
He informed the Board that the Fund (£19.62) was only just above the average
admin cost per member when compared with our nearest neighbours by size
(£19.36) and well below the national average (£31.90).

17

Pension Board- Tuesday, 4th October, 2022

Page 11



26

He said that the Fund’s Performance KPIs were comparable in general apart from
transfers.

He informed the Board that the majority of staff had been Fund members for either 1-
5 years (42.69%) or more than 15 years (33.21%). He added that the highest
proportion staff within the Fund earned between £20 - £25k (35%).

He asked the Board to consider whether the Fund should take part in future
exercises, given that it is resource demanding, the consistency of the way the data is
provided and the level of accessibility of the results data from CIPFA.

He added that even though data from 2020/21 was submitted last September no
results were given until May 2022.

The Chair said that he was slightly disappointed that not as many Funds were now
taking part.

Alison Wyatt questioned whether it was worth the officer time and stress to take part
in future exercises.

The Pensions Manager said that officers will monitor what effect Insights has on this
process.

The Chair asked if whether it was felt that CIPFA were engaged enough currently in
this process.

The Group Manager for Funding, Investment & Risk said that maybe their role was
slightly less prominent because of the Scheme Advisory Board. She added that
pooling might also affect their involvement.

The Director — One West stated that his view was that benchmarking was a critical
tool and valuable process that needs to be continued in some form. He said that
opportunities within Brunel could be explored from those funds that are pooled
together.

The Chair thanked the Pensions Manager for his presentation on behalf of the
Board.

RISK REGISTER UPDATE

The Governance & Risk Advisor introduced the item to the Board. She stated that
the purpose of the report was to update them with the latest risk register as at
September 2022. She added that officers were in the process of streamlining the
register and that the intention was that the new version would be published within the
December 2022 agenda.

Alison Wyatt referred to Risk RO1 - Disaster Recovery & Business Continuity and

asked when the Board would receive the report on Cyber Security and Business
Continuity as it had been scheduled for earlier in the year.

18

Pension Board- Tuesday, 4th October, 2022

Page 12



27

28

The Governance & Risk Advisor replied that further internal work had been required
and that a review within the Council was ongoing.

The Director, One West added that the report should form part of the agenda for the
December 2022 meeting.

Steve Harman commented that he welcomed the decision to streamline the register
as it would be more meaningful in his view to discuss the risks that are judged to be
red.

The Board RESOLVED to note the report.
PENSION BOARD'S ANNUAL REPORT

The Governance & Risk Advisor introduced the report to the Board. She informed
them that the Pension Board reports annually to Council on the work it has
undertaken in the previous twelve months. She added that the report will be taken to
Council on 17th November 2022 along with the Pension Committee’s annual report
to Council.

Steve Harman commented that the content of the report was good, but felt that some
work could be done with regard to the layout to make it slightly easier to read /
engaging.

The Group Manager for Funding, Investment & Risk replied that in previous years
they had spent a lot longer on producing a report that was probably more interesting
and that maybe some middle ground could be found for next year’s version.

The Director, One West asked for the training costs for the Board on page 103 of the
agenda pack to be checked as he felt that they were likely to be higher than the £195
stated.

The Governance & Risk Advisor replied that she would check these figures prior to
the report being submitted to Council.

The Board RESOLVED to approve the report.

PENSION BOARD WORKPLAN & TRAINING PLAN

The Governance & Risk Advisor introduced the report to the Board. She highlighted
Appendix 2 of the report and reminded members of the need for them to complete
the training modules from the Hymans Learning Academy.

She stated that in order to ensure all members have the correct access to Modern
Gov and the library, the APF Communications Team have been contacting members
to provide the relevant support & training required.

She asked for Board Members to inform officers if they have any specific training

needs or feel that they would benefit from having a workshop on a particular subject
area.

19

Pension Board- Tuesday, 4th October, 2022

Page 13



The Board RESOLVED to:

i) Note the workplan & training plan for 2022/23
ii) Note the dates for future meetings.

The meeting ended at 4.30 pm

Chair(person)

Prepared by Democratic Services

Pension Board- Tuesday, 4th October, 2022
Page 14

20



Agenda Item 8

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: | LOCAL PENSION BOARD - AVON PENSION FUND

AGENDA
II\D/IE-F;—.ING 8 December 2022 ITEM
] NUMBER
TITLE: External Audit - Update

WARD: ALL

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:
Appendix 1 - Draft Audit Findings Report — Avon Pension Fund

THE ISSUE
1.1. The purpose of this report is to update the Pension Board on the draft audit
findings of the External Auditor
2. RECOMMENDATION
2.1. That the Board notes the report.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1. There are no direct implications related to the Pension Board in connection with
this report.

4, REPORT

4.1. Appendix 1 details the draft report on the External Auditor’s work and findings
from the audit of the Pension Fund Accounts. The findings report was also
considered by the Corporate Audit Committee of B&NES at its last meeting on
the 23 of November.

4.2. The External Auditor will provide a full briefing at the meeting.

5. RISK MANAGEMENT

5.1.The Avon Pension Fund Committee is the formal decision-making body for the
Fund. As such it has responsibility to ensure adequate risk management
processes are in place. It discharges this responsibility by ensuring the Fund
has an appropriate investment strategy and investment management structure
in place that is regularly monitored. In addition, it monitors the benefits
administration, the risk register and compliance with relevant investment,
finance and administration regulations.

6. EQUALITIES

Page 15




6.1. A proportionate equalities impact assessment has been carried out using
corporate guidelines and no significant issues have been identified.

7. CLIMATE CHANGE

7.1. The Fund is implementing a digital strategy across all its operations and
communications with stakeholders to reduce its internal carbon footprint in line
with the Council’s Climate Strategy. The Fund acknowledges the financial risk
to its assets from climate change and is addressing this through its strategic
asset allocation to Paris Aligned Global Equities Sustainable Equities and
renewable energy opportunities. The strategy is monitored and reviewed by the
Committee.

8. CONSULTATION

1.1 Reports and its contents have been consulted with the Head of Pensions and
Director — One West representing the administering authority.

Contact person Carolyn Morgan - Governance & Risk Advisor — 01225
395240

Background papers

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative
format

Page 16




This version of the report is a draft. Its contents and
subject matter remain under review and its contents may
change and be expanded as part of the finalisation of

the report.
° Gra ntThornton This draft has been created from the template dated

DD MMM YYYY

The Audit Findings for
Avon Pension Fund

Year ended 31 March 2022

.gvon Pension Fund
%9 November 2022
[EEY

\l




8T abed

Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

Peter Barber

Key Audit Partner

T 0117 305 7897

E Peter.A.Barber@uk.gt.com

Beth Bowers

Senior Manager

T 0117 305 7726

E Beth.AC.Garner@uk.gt.com

George Amos

Assistant Manager

T 0117 305 7780

E George. WM.Amos@uk.gt.com

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Contents

Section

1. Headlines
2. Financial statements
3. Independence and ethics

Appendices
A. Action plan

B. Follow up of prior year recommendations
C. Audit adjustments
D. Fees

Page

15

18
22
23
26

Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate only to the
matters which have come to our attention,
which we believe need to be reported to you
as part of our audit planning process. It is
not a comprehensive record of all the
relevant matters, which may be subject to
change, and in particular we cannot be held
responsible to you for reporting all of the
risks which may affect the Pension Fund or
all weaknesses in your internal controls. This
report has been prepared solely for your
benefit and should not be quoted in whole or
in part without our prior written consent. We
do not accept any responsibility for any loss
occasioned to any third party acting, or
refraining from acting on the basis of the
content of this report, as this report was

not prepared for, nor intended for, any
other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability
partnership registered in England and Wales:
No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury
Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is
available from our registered office. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated
by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the
member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms.
GTIL and its member firms are not agents of,
and do not obligate, one another and are not
liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



Commercial in confidence

1. Headlines

This table summarises the Financial Statements
key findings and other

.. Under International Standards of Audit (UK) We commenced our post-statements audit in June and as at November 2022 our audit is
matters a rising from the (ISAs) and the National Audit Office (NAO)  substantially complete. This year we adopted a hybrid approach involving a combination of
StOtUtOFH audit of Avon Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), we are  on-site and remote working. Our findings are summarised on pages 6 to 1.

required to report whether, in our opinion: We have identified no material errors or adjustments to the financial statements and there are

Pension Fund (‘the Pension
[ * the Pension Fund’s financial statements  no matters arising to date that would require modification of our audit opinion. We have

b .
Fund ] and the preparation give a true and fair view of the financial recommended a number of other adjustments to improve the presentation of the financial
of the Pension Fund's position of the Pension Fund and its statements. Audit adjustments are detailed in Appendix C. We have also raised
. . income and expenditure for the year; recommendations for management as a result of our audit work in Appendix A. Our follow up
financial statements for the and of recommendations from the prior year’s audit are detailed in Appendix B.
year ended 31 March 2022 * have been properly prepared in The draft financial statements were presented for audit in accordance with the agreed
. accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC timetable. Whilst in the main, good quality working papers were provided to support entries,
fOl’ those Chdrged Wlth code of practice on local authority we did encounter issues that resulted in additional, unplanned audit work.
yoverno nce. oc.:countlng and pt:epored n occord.gnoe This additional work reflects the continuous raising of the bar and us as auditors providing
Q XllithOP;i Local Audit and Accountability greater challenge to the Pension Fund especially in the areas subject to greatest estimation
c .

and uncertainty. This additional time has resulted in a proposed further increase in audit fees
for 2021/22 as set out in Appendix D.

Subject to a small number of audit procedures being completed, we anticipate issuing an
unqualified audit opinion following the completion of the Bath and North East Somerset
Council audit.

6T @

We have concluded that the other information to be published with the financial statements, is
consistent with our knowledge of your organisation and the financial statements we have
audited.

Our anticipated audit report opinion will be unmodified.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 3



2. Financial Statements

Overview of the scope of our audit Audit approach

This Audit Findings Report presents the observations arising
from the audit that are significant to the responsibility of
those charged with governance to oversee the financial
reporting process, as required by International Standard on
Auditing (UK) 260 and the Code of Audit Practice (‘the
Code’). Its contents have been discussed with management
Erior to presentation to the Corporate Audit Committee.

cgks auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in

ngccordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK)

Q@nd the Code, which is directed towards forming and
expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have
been prepared by management with the oversight of those
charged with governance. The audit of the financial
statements does not relieve management or those charged
with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Our audit approach was based on a thorough
understanding of the Pension Fund’s business and is risk
based, and in particular included:

* An evaluation of the Pension Fund's internal controls
environment, including its IT systems and controls;

* Substantive testing on significant transactions and
material account balances, including the procedures
outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks

Commercial in confidence

We have substantially completed our audit of your financial
statements and subject to a small number of outstanding
queries being resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified
audit opinion following the completion of the Bath and North
East Somerset Council audit.

These outstanding items include:

* receipt of management representation letter; and
* review of the Annual report
* review of the final set of financial statements

+  Completion of the 2021/22 Bath and North East Somerset
Council audit.

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to record our
appreciation for the assistance provided by the finance
team and other staff. As part of our audit procedures, we
identified several issues in relation to the reconciliation of
several populations, discussions about prior period
adjustments and difficulty obtaining IT evidence.

This resulted in us having to carry out additional audit
procedures, as summarised on page 26 to gain sufficient
audit assurance in respect of our auditor’s opinion on the
financial statements.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements

Pension Fund Amount (£) Qualitative factors considered

Materiality for the financial 59,000,000 We considered the proportion of net assets to the Fund to be an appropriate
(@ statements benchmark for the financial year. In the prior year we used the same
benchmark. Our materiality equates to approximately 1% of your net assets

for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Our approach to materiality Performance materiality 44,250,000 We have determined this using 75% of materiality. This is considered an
appropriate benchmark as we have not identified a history of significant
deficiencies in the control environment or a large number of significant
misstatements in prior year audits. In addition, the management and finance
team remain stable.

The concept of materiality is
fundamental to the preparation of the
financial statements and the audit
process and applies not only to the
monetary misstatements but also to
disclosure requirements and
adherence to acceptable accounting
practice and applicable law.

Trivial matters 2,950,000 This is based on 5% of materiality, which we consider to be an appropriate
threshold to use in terms of our reporting to the Corporate Audit Committee as
‘Those Charged with Governance’.

Materiality levels remain the same as
reported in our audit plan.

T¢ abed

We detail in the table to the right our
determination of materiality for Avon
Pension Fund.

'l"r.i:“"”'r

ll'l.‘."..’.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 5



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - Significant risks

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK] as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In
identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood.
Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

This section provides commentary on the significant audit risks communicated in the Audit Plan.

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary

Management override of controls We have:

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the risk of +  evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over journals;
management over-ride of controls is present in all entities. The Fund faces

. . ° . . analysed the journals listing and determined the criteria for selecting high risk unusual journals;
external scrutiny of its stewardship of funds and this could potentially

place management under undue pressure in terms of how they report * tested unusual journals recorded during the year and after the draft accounts stage for appropriateness and
performance. corroboration;
i ifi : i ; * gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical judgements applied by management and
—g/Ve therefore identified management override of control, in particular gaine c 9 ! g ) al jucdg PP y g
8journols, management estimates and transactions outside the course of considered their reasonableness with regard to corroborative evidence; and
Mbusiness as a significant risk, which was one of the most significant + evaluated the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions.

d risks of material misstat t. . . . . . g . .
R)nssesse risks of matenat misstatemen Our testing of estimates, judgements and journals has not identified any evidence of management override of

controls. We have raised one control recommendation in Appendix A relating to our journals work.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 6



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Improper revenue recognition (rebutted)

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue
may be misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue.

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that there
is no risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue
recognition.

We rebutted this risk in our Audit Plan. We have reconsidered this as part of our audit work on the financial
statements and have not changed our assessment and therefore we confirm that we do not consider this to be a
significant risk for Avon Pension Fund.

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of improper revenue recognition.

Valuation of Level 3 investments

The Fund revalues its investments on an annual basis to ensure that
the carrying value is not materially different from the fair value at the
financial statements date.

-

QD

«Q

MBy their nature Level 3 investment valuations lack observable inputs.

o'\gl'hese valuations therefore represent a significant estimate by
management in the financial statements due to the size of the
numbers involved (£1,312 million) and the sensitivity of this estimate to
changes in key assumptions

Under ISA 315 significant risks often relate to significant non-routine
transactions and judgemental matters. Level 3 investments by their
very nature require a significant degree of judgement to reach an
appropriate valuation at year end.

Management utilise the services of investment managers and
custodians as valuation experts to estimate the fair value as at 31
March 2022.

We therefore identified valuation of Level 3 investments as a
significant risk, which was one of the most significant assessed risks of
material misstatement.

We have:
* evaluated management's processes for valuing Level 3 investments

* reviewed the nature and basis of estimated values and considered what assurance management has over the
year end valuations provided for these types of investments; to ensure that the requirements of the Code are
met

* independently requested year-end confirmations from investment managers and custodians

+ for a sample of investments, tested the valuation by obtaining and reviewing the audited accounts, (where
available) at the latest date for individual investments and agreeing these to the fund manager reports at that
date. Reconciled those values to the values at 31 March 2021 with reference to known movements in the
intervening period

* in the absence of available audited accounts, we have evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the valuation expert

* tested revaluations made during the year to see if they had been input correctly into the Pension Fund’s asset
register

* where available reviewed investment manager service auditor report on design effectiveness of internal controls.
Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in relation to the risk identified.

As highlighted above, our audit focuses on looking at external confirmations from both investments managers and
the custodian, and as a result there will always be differences in when information is received compared to the
information available when management are estimating the values for the accounts. This year, two individual
differences identified were above our trivial threshold and these are detailed on page 10. The total aggregate
difference identified for Level 3 investments was £8.6m.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - Significant risks

Risks identified in our Audit Plan Commentary

Expenditure recorded includes fraudulent transactions (rebutted) We rebutted this risk in our Audit Plan. We have reconsidered this as part of our audit work on the financial
statements and have not changed our assessment and therefore we confirm that we do not consider this to be a

Practice Note 10: Audit of Financial Statements of Public Sector Bodies in g - -
significant risk for Avon Pension Fund.

the United Kingdom (PN10] states:

“As most public bodies are net spending bodies, then the risk of material
misstatement due to fraud elated expenditure may be greater than the risk
of material misstatements due to fraud related revenue recognition”. Public
sector auditors therefore need to consider whether they have any
significant concerns about fraudulent financial reporting of expenditure
which would need to be treated as a significant risk for the audit.

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of improper expenditure recognition.

vz abed

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 8



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - key judgements
and estimates

This section provides commentary on key estimates and judgements inline with the enhanced
requirements for auditors.

Significant judgement or estimate

Summary of management’s approach

Audit Comments

Level 3 Investments - £1,312m

The Pension Fund has investments in pooled property
funds, pooled infrastructure funds, a long term investment
and hedge funds that in total are valued on the balance
sheet as at 31 March 2022 at £1,312m. These investments
are not traded on an open exchange/market and the
valuation of the investments is highly subjective due to a
lack of observable inputs. In order to determine the value,

As outlined in our testing of the valuation of level 3 investments we
have;

- Assessed management’s expert, reviewing their competence,
expertise and objectivity where appropriate,

- Considered the valuation techniques used against industry
practice, and

;)U management has employed expert fund managers who - Reviewed the adequacy of disclosures of estimate in the financial
«Q have the necessary experience and technical expertise to statements.
@ ensure the correct valuation of these investments in the S . . . .
N Our findings in relation to the testing of Level 3 investments
a year end accounts. The fund are also supported by . o . .
; . . identified small estimation differences. The total aggregate
investment advisors who are independent from the fund . . . . -
. . difference identified for Level 3 investments was a potential
managers who can advice on the performance of this .
. overstatement of the estimates by £8.6m.
type of investments. The performance of these
investments are scrutinised bU the pension fund Two differences identified were |nd|V|duc1||g greoter than our trivial
investment board. The value of the investment has threshold:
increased by £168m in year, and level 3 investments and » Adifference of £3.4m in the Brunel Secured Income Standard
now account for 22.6% of the fund. Life Fund when compared to the latest available audited
accounts of the fund; and
* Adifference of £6.7m in the Brunel Secured Income Greencoat
Fund when compared to the latest available audited accounts
of the fund
Assessment

@ [Purple] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

[ ] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® [Light Purple] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Assessment

Blue



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - key judgements

and estimates

Significant judgement or estimate = Summary of management’s approach

Audit Comments Assessment

The Pension Fund investments in level 2 on
the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022 totall
£4,217m. The investments are not traded on
an open exchange/market and the
valuation of the investment is subjective. In
order to determine the value, management
has employed expert fund managers who
have the necessary experience and
technical expertise to ensure the correct
valuation of these investments in the year
end accounts. The fund are also supported
by investment advisors who are
independent from the fund managers who
can advise on the performance of this type
of investments. The performance of these
investments are scrutinised by the pension
fund investment board. The value of the
investments has increased by £297m
compared to the prior year.

Level 2 Investments — £4,217m

9z abed

Blue

Similar to our approach for level 3 investments, we have;

- Assessed management’s expert, reviewing their competence, expertise and
objectivity where appropriate,

- Considered the valuation techniques used against industry practice, and
- Reviewed the adequacy of disclosures of estimate in the financial statements.

Our findings in relation to the testing of Level 2 investments identified some
estimation differences. Most of the individual differences identified were not above
our trivial threshold. The total aggregate difference identified for Level 2
investments was a potential understatement of the estimates by £9.3m.

Only one difference identified was greater than our trivial threshold:

- A difference of £7m in the Brunel Global Sustainable Mutual Fund when
compared to the latest available audited accounts of the fund.

Assessment

® Dark Purple We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

® Blue

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic

We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious

® Light Purple We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - key judgements
and estimates

Significant
judgement or

estimate Summary of management’s approach Audit Comments Assessment

Valuation of Pension  The fund has elected to take ‘option B’ from IAS 26 when considering the We have; We consider

Fund Liability actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits, and as such presents Assessed management’s expert, reviewing their competence, management
this as a note to the accounts. Management have obtained this information expertise and objectivity where appropriate, ’s process is
from the actuary for the fund. The actuary has been provided with all of the . . ) appropriate
necessary information using the annual returns required, which results in the Considered the data upon which the valuation has been and key
actuary producing the valuation and required reporting paragraphs. The based assumptions
principal assumptions used by the actuary are in respect of mortality Considered the reasonableness of the assumptions used, are neither
(longevity at 65 for current and future pensioners) and financial assumptions: and optimistic or
rate of CPl inflation, rate of increase in salaries, rate of increase in pensions cautious.

Reviewed the adequacy of disclosures of estimate in the

Rv) and rate for discounting scheme liabilities. The Council’s Pension & financial statements
8 Investments Manager communicates with the externally appointed actuary '
9] throughout the year and the year-end report is considered by management
B prior to inclusion in the financial statements.
Measurement of The Fund values its financial instruments at fair value, as informed by the We have; We consider
Financial advice of external d.nd independent' Management oolvi.sors and Investment Assessed management’s expert, reviewing their competence, rr]onogeme.nt
Instruments Fund Managers. Fair values are estlmote.d 'bg calculating 'the present value of expertise and objectivity where appropriate, s process is
cash flows that take place over the remaining term of the instruments, as . . . o appropriate
provided by management experts. Management consider the exposure of each Cons[dered the valuation techniques used against industry and key
of its categories of financial instruments to credit, liquidity and market risks . practice, and assumptions
Risks to accounting estimates used in our measurement of financial instruments Reviewed the adequacy of disclosures of estimate in the are neither
are managed through our Pensions Investment Strategy Statement and the financial statements. optimistic or
Funds overall risk management procedures which focus on the unpredictability cautious.
of financial markets to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources
available to fund sources.
Assessment

® Dark Purple We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated

® Blue We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious
® Llight Purple We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - matters discussed
with management

This section provides commentary on the significant matters we discussed with management during the course of the audit.

Significant matter Commentary

The draft financial statements were presented for audit in accordance with the agreed Additional work was required due to the following issues:
timetable. Whilst in the main, good quality working papers were provided to support entries,

. . . . ) The Purchases and Sales populations did not reconcile to the draft financial
we did encounter issues that resulted in additional, unplanned audit work.

statements
“Urhis additional work reflects the continuous raising of the bar and us as auditors providing
ggreoter challenge to the Pension Fund especially in the areas subject to greatest estimation

@and uncertainty. This additional time has resulted in a proposed further increase in audit fees
gor 2021/22 as set out in Appendix D. - We identified two potential prior period errors that we discussed with the financial

statements team and our financial reporting colleagues in order to determine
whether prior period adjustments were required. Neither error impacted the primary
statements. One presentational error was adjusted and the other was not material.

We encountered reconciliation issues with the Benefits population provided to us,
which resulted in delays in being able to select our sample of benefits paid.

- We experienced difficulties obtaining IT audit evidence, which required additional
time input to resolve.

- The derivatives population did not easily reconcile to the draft financial statements,
and we identified some adjustments that were required to the disclosure.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 12



Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - other
communication requirements

We set out below details of
other matters which we, as
auditors, are required by
auditing standards and the
Code to communicate to
those charged with

ggovernonoe.
Q

6Z

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Issue

Commentary

Matters in relation
to fraud

We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Corporate Audit Committee. We have not been made
aware of any other incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit
procedures.

Matters in relation
to related parties

We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed.

Matters in relation
to laws and
regulations

You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
and we have not identified any incidences from our audit work.

Written
representations

A letter of representation will be requested from the Pension Fund.

Confirmation
requests from
third parties

We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to all of the fund managers that work
with the Fund and all banking institutions that management. This permission was granted and the requests were
sent, of these requests all were returned with positive confirmation.

Accounting
practices

We have evaluated the appropriateness of the Pension Fund's accounting policies, accounting estimates and
financial statement disclosures. Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements.

Audit evidence
and explanations/
significant
difficulties

All information and explanations requested from management was provided.

We experienced a number of difficulties in obtaining a population for purchases and sales testing. We also
identified a few differences in reconciliations between notes in the financial statements.




Commercial in confidence

2. Financial Statements - other
communication requirements

Issue Commentary

Going concern In performing our work on going concern, we have had reference to Statement of Recommended Practice -
Practice Note 10: Audit of financial statements of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020). The
Financial Reporting Council recognises that for particular sectors, it may be necessary to clarify how auditing
Our responsibility standards are applied to an entity in a manner that is relevant and provides useful information to the users of

As auditors, we are required to “obtain financial statements in that sector. Practice Note 10 provides that clarification for audits of public sector bodies.

sufficient appropriate audit evidence Practice Note 10 sets out the following key principles for the consideration of going concern for public sector
about the appropriateness of entities:

management's use of the going
concern assumption in the
preparation and presentation of the
financial statements and to conclude
whetherthere is a material
uncertainty about the entity's ability

to continue as a going concern” (ISA
(UK] 570]. + for many public sector entities, the financial sustainability of the reporting entity and the services it provides is

more likely to be of significant public interest than the application of the going concern basis of accounting.

* the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of significant focus of the auditor’s time and
resources because the applicable financial reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis for
accounting will apply where the entity’s services will continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such
cases, a material uncertainty related to going concern is unlikely to exist, and so a straightforward and
standardised approach for the consideration of going concern will often be appropriate for public sector
entities

0g abed

Practice Note 10 states that if the financial reporting framework provides for the adoption of the going concern
basis of accounting on the basis of the anticipated continuation of the provision of a service in the future, the
auditor applies the continued provision of service approach set out in Practice Note 10. The financial reporting
framework adopted by the Pension Fund meets this criteria, and so we have applied the continued provision of
service approach. In doing so, we have considered and evaluated:

* the nature of the Pension Fund and the environment in which it operates

* the Pension Fund's financial reporting framework

* the Pension Fund's system of internal control for identifying events or conditions relevant to going concern

* management’s going concern assessment.

On the basis of this work, we have obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence to enable us to conclude that:
* a material uncertainty related to going concern has not been identified

* management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 4



2. Financial Statements - other
responsibilities under the Code

Issue Commentary
Disclosures Our review of the Pension Fund Annual Report is underway, but has not yet been completed.
Matters on which We are required to give a separate opinion for the Pension Fund Annual Report on whether the financial
we report by statements included therein are consistent with the audited financial statements. We propose to issue our
exception ‘consistency’ opinion on the Pension Funds Annual Report at the same time as our audit opinion.

-

D

«Q

®

w

s

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence




Commercial in confidence

3. Independence and ethics

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence Transparency
as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with
the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and confirm that we, as a firm, and each
covered person, are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the
financial statements

Grant Thornton publishes an annual Transparency Report, which sets out details of the
action we have taken over the past year to improve audit quality as well as the results of
internal and external quality inspections. For more details see Transparency report 2020
(grantthornton.co.uk)

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of
the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered
person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the
financial statements.

Eurther, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor
uidance Note O1issued in May 2020 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical
oequirements for auditors of local public bodies.

Details of fees charged are detailed in Appendix D

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 16



Commercial in confidence

3. Independence and ethics

Audit and non-audit services

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Pension Fund. The following non-audit services were identified, as well as the
threats to our independence and safeguards that have been applied to mitigate these threats.

Service Fees £ Threats identified Safeguards

Audit related

Audit of Brunel Pension 40,000 None We do not consider the audit of BPP as a threat to our independence as Avon Pension fund cannot exercise
Partnership Limited (BPP) control over BPP.

The audit of BPP is carried out by a specialist team, authorised by the Financial Standards Authority.
The fee of £40,000 is not significant compared to the audit fees of the ten participating pension funds.

Please note this fee is not included in the financial statement of Avon Pension Fund as is payable by BPP.
-

&on—audit Related
(o]

%rovision of IAS 19 12,000 Self review This is not considered a significant threat as we are not reviewing any information that we have prepared. As
Assurances to Scheme [Estimoted] this is an audit related service, it is acceptable for the audit team to carry out this work. In addition, we have
Employer auditors not prepared the financial information on which our assurances will be used by the requested auditors to rom

an opinion on as part of their opinion on the financial statements of the admitted body.

Management This is not considered a significant threat as the scope of the work does not include making decisions on behalf

of management or recommending or suggesting a particular course of action for management to follow. We
will not be making any recommendations as part of this work.

This is not considered a significant threat as the fee is recurring but not significant to the audit of the financial

Self interest statements; further, it is fixed based on the number of admitted bodies.

These services are consistent with the Pension Fund’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. All services have been approved by the Corporate Audit Committee. None of
the services provided are subject to contingent fees.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 17



Appendices



Commercial in confidence

A. Action plan - Audit of Financial

Statements

We have identified [X] recommendations for the Pension Fund as a result of issues identified during the course of our audit. We
have agreed our recommendations with management and we will report on progress on these recommendations during the
course of the 2022/23 audit. The matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies that we have identified during the
course of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to you in accordance with

auditing standards.

Issue and risk

Assessment

Recommendations

As part of our risk assessment procedures around Journals, we identified
that the fund were reviewing all journals at year end rather than throughout
the year.

We also identified that user reviews are scheduled to take place quarterly.

Both findings leave the fund open to significant time passing before issues
are identified.

We recommend that journal reviews are undertaken monthly rather than at year end and
that reviews of user listings are undertaken monthly rather than quarterly.

Management response
Agreed - journal reviews and user reviews will be undertaken monthly instead.

Journal reviews are not the only way that issues are identified, though. Budget monitoring,
contributions monitoring, bank reconciliations and reporting to the Actuary will often pick
up issues more promptly.

User reviews are not the only check on user access. The BENES Financial Systems Team
have processes around starters and leaver access.

Our reconciliation of the current year comparative figures to last year’s
Avon pension Fund Annual Report identified two immaterial differences in
the figures published to those included in the 2021-22 draft financial
statements. We identified that the fund had included the correct figures in
the BENES Signed accounts for 2020-21, but that the Pension Fund Annual
Report had not been updated.

We recommend that further checks are performed prior to publication of final audited
statements to ensure that all audit adjustments have been reflected. It is the audited body's
responsibility to publish the appropriate statements. Through our financial statements
review where prior year comparator figures are referenced through to published prior year
statements, there were some inconsistencies within the Related Parties and Financial
Instruments notes. These figures had been updated in the BANES accounts, however the
final published APF annual report still displayed 20/21 draft figures.

Management response

Agreed - the post audit adjustments should have been reflected in the Annual Report.
Further checks will be implemented to ensure that this doesn't happen in the future.

Controls

@® High - Significant effect on financial statements
® Medium - Limited Effect on financial statements

Low - Best practice

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.



Commercial in confidence

A. Action plan - Audit of Financial

Statements

Issue and risk

Assessment

Recommendations

Our journals testing identified one off ledger adjustment. While this
year the adjustment is trivial in value, there is a risk that off ledger
adjustments are incorrectly processed or accidentally excluded.

We recommend that this adjustment is moved onto the ledger in the future.
Management response
Agreed - for completeness this adjustment will be posted to the ledger in 22/23.

The adjustment relates to tax on lifetime allowances. When a member takes their benefits, if the
capital value of those benefits is more than the lifetime allowance, tax has to be paid on the
excess. APF offer to pay the tax upfront and are reimbursed from pension deductions over time
(creating a long term debtor in the Accounts). The current lifetime allowance is £1,073,100, so this
affects very few members when they retire.

Our contributions testing identified that one Pension Fund officer
altered the benefits reconciliation to reflect a value different to one of
the admitted bodies LGPS 50 forms. The amendment was made to
reflect the fact that the admitted body was suggesting their return
was incorrect.

We recommend that where errors are identified in LGPS 50’s their either new ones are submitted
by the admitted body, or that these are explained as reconciling items and that the
reconciliations are not amended.

We also recommend the fund implements a form of exception report which identifies when
members contributions are out of line with the matrix.

Management response

Agreed - a reconciling item should have been added instead for this. To put this into context, the
value of the adjustment was relatively small, £1,279.44 (monthly contributions of £9m). Also, it is

not possible to change the original LGPS50 form, this was an amendment to a csv download file,
used in the contributions reconciliation.

We identified that management are not reporting their derivative
assets and liabilities gross, but are accounting for them net.

While the difference is not material in the current period, we recommend that management
reports gross assets and liabilities moving forward.

Management response

Agreed - derivative assets will be reported gross from 22/23 onwards.

We identified that management are not updating cyber security
policies

While the policies are readily accessible by staff, we recommend that they are updated on a
regular basis to ensure they remain relevant.

Management response

Agreed. This is something we are aware of and we are taking active steps to address this at the
moment. For instance, the council is implementing a cyber resilience roadmap, is engaging with
an external partner to deliver a cyber response plan, is updating its intranet pages on cyber
security and has started an internal policy working group who are currently reviewing all IT
policies.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

20



Commercial in confidence

A. Action plan - Audit of Financial

Statements

Issue and risk

Assessment

Recommendations

Inadequate oversight around generic user in Agresso application

During the audit, we obtained and inspected the evidence relating to the
administration of generic accounts with privileged access within the Agresso
application and observed that the access to a generic account
[Administrator] is shared between the multiple administrators from Finance
systems department. The Council has no controls in place to monitor the
appropriateness of the activities performed by the account.

Risk:

The use of generic or shared accounts with high-level privileges increases
the risk of unauthorised or inappropriate changes to the application or
database. Where unauthorised activities are performed, they will not be
traceable to an individual.

Also, without appropriate audit logging and monitoring, unauthorised
activities may not be detected in a timely manner, can go unnoticed, and
evidence of whether the attack led to a breach can be inconclusive.

It is recommended that:

*  Where possible, generic accounts should be removed, and individuals should have their
own uniquely identifiable user accounts created to ensure accountability for actions
performed.

* Alternately, the Council should implement suitable controls to limit access and monitor
the usage of these accounts (i.e. through increased use of password vault tools /
logging and periodic monitoring of the activities performed).

*  Where monitoring is undertaken this should be formally documented and recorded.
Management response

The admin user ID is assigned to overnight processes and automated processes. Individuals
with systems access have their own systems admin access that they use, they have no need
to log in as the admin user and this is actively discouraged. In addition amendment logging is
activated which gives an audit trail of actions the individual has performed on the database.

Lack of controls over granting new user access within Altair application
Altair

For a sample user, we noted that the new user access to be mirrored with
appropriate user was not mentioned clearly in the new user creation form to
verify appropriateness of roles granted against roles approved and had
incorrect permissions to be granted within Altair. This lack of information
made it difficult to verify whether the permissions requested versus the
permissions granted were aligned, or whether the permissions requested
were appropriate for the user’s role.

Risk
User access may not be appropriately aligned to job role requirements

which may lead to inappropriate access within the application or
underlying data.

It is recommended that the Council ensure that all requests for user permissions are
specifically defined in the new user creation form in order to provide a suitable audit trail.

Management response

The front-end user would have little knowledge of the back-office roles. The roles would be
assigned by systems admin based on the requested team and job title on the request form.
A new user request form is in development that will ensure the requester has sufficient
knowledge of the roles the new user will be assigned to.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

21



Commercial in confidence

A. Action plan - Audit of Financial

Statements

Issue and risk

Assessment

Recommendations

Lack of controls over user access amendments within Altair and Agresso
application

Altair: For a sample user, we noted that the existing user access request via email
does not define the specific access rights that should be assigned to the user.
This lack of information made it difficult to verify the appropriateness of user’s
access to the new access role.

Agresso: For a sample user, we noted that the existing user access new request
was not approved by appropriate Line manager as described in the Agresso user
form. However, we noted that the existing user access request was approved by
an appropriate user from the Budget team and access was provided by Financial
Systems Team.

Additionally, it was noted that there was system limitation to obtain the access
modification date from the Agresso system which made it difficult to identify the
date when the access was modified within the system to verify that the access
was granted in the Agresso system after the access requested was approved.

Risk
User access may not be appropriately aligned to job role requirements and may

lead to inappropriate access being gained to the application and/or
inappropriate changes being made to underlying data.

It is recommended that the Council should develop formal user access management
procedures to ensure activities are consistently performed, logged and monitored.

Where user access is modified, Council should proactively review existing user access
prior to additional access rights being granted. This should ensure only access
required for the user’s new role remains assigned and that no segregation of duty
threats are created.

It is also recommended that Council ensure that all requests for user permissions are
specifically defined in the user amendment form in order to provide a suitable audit
trail.

Management response

In Altair a new user form will be adapted to revise the process and further define access
rights that should be assigned to the user.

In Agresso it Is noted that on this one occasion the line managers approval was not
sought. Staff will be reminded of this within the financial systems team and budget
reporting team.

The access modification date is available within Agresso, but you would need access to
amendment logging and the knowledge of how to interrogate the database to retrieve
this information. It is available and can be reported on, but non privileged users can’t
see this.

Lack of review of security/audit logs in Agresso

It was noted that whilst security/audit logs are enabled in Agresso, they are not
proactively monitored or reviewed.

Risks

Without formal and routine reviews of security event logs, inappropriate and
anomalous activity may not be detected and resolved in a timely manner.

It is recommended that security/audit event logs are reviewed on a regular basis for
example daily or weekly, ideally by an IT security personnel/team who are independent
of those administrating Agresso. Any issues identified within these logs should be
investigated and mitigating controls implemented to reduce the risk of reoccurrence.

Management response

Key alerts are already set up on Agresso and are called intel agents and are ran
automatically for things such as amendments to Bank accounts, pay runs. Which are
reviewed externally. These intel agents will be reviewed.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

22



Commercial in confidence

B. Follow up of prior year
recommendations

We identified the fol |OWII’19 Assessment Issue and risk previously communicated Update on actions taken to address the issue
issues in the audit of [insert
. . . v At the time of concluding our audit of the Fund for We followed up on the previous breaches and identified
client nome] Pension Fund's 2019-20, we were alerted to a breach of the Fund’s that there have been no significant breaches identified in
2020/21 financial statements, requirement to submit pension savings statements. 2021/22.
. . Whilst this was not reported in 2019-20, we
which resulted in one recommended that management ensure there were
recommendation being no further br\fvoches;hroudgh Icu;e s.ubmil;ssionhs of
. . statements. We confirmed at the time that there
;?e Ported In our 2020/21 Audit were no breaches during 2020-21.

G indings report. We are

Wleased to report that
management have
implemented all of our
recommendations.

Assessment

¥" Action completed
X Not yet addressed

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 23



Commercial in confidence

C. Audit Adjustments

We are required to report
all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by
management.

Impact of adjusted misstatements

There were no adjusted misstatements above trivial for the year ending 31 March 2022.

Misclassification and disclosure changes

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.

Disclosure omission Auditor recommendations Adjusted?
;?Generol amendments to presentation, grammar, rounding and ~ We brought these to the attention of management, who adjusted most of these errors. v
%tgpogrcphiccl errors were made in various areas of the
_hoccounts.
(=

Our testing of Note ? identified that Cash Deposits Purchases ~ We recommended that management adjust for the error, which they did. v

at Cost, Sales Proceeds and Change in Market Value were
calculated using the 20/21 purchases and sales report not

21/22.

The values were adjusted by the following amounts:
Purchases at Cost: £286,461k

Sales Proceeds: £249,288k

Change in Market Value -£37,173

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 24



C. Audit Adjustments

Misclassification and disclosure changes continued

Commercial in confidence

title had slipped below the Equities line.

processed the amendment.

Disclosure omission Auditor recommendations Adjusted?

Note @ disclosure was updated for the property pooled investments We recommended that the note was updated and management appropriately adjusted v

disclosure as the draft disclosure did not include the Unitised Insurance for the omission.

Policies.

The values were adjusted by the following amounts:

Purchases at Cost: £575,000k

Sales Proceeds: £674,903k

In the Fund’s draft financial statements, Note 25 incorrectly included This was included as the fund were not notified of their leaving until after the accounts v

Aramark Limited - South Gloucestershire and Stroud College as an were produced. We recommended the note was updated and management

employer however they are no longer an admitted body of the fund.
;chur testing of the draft Derivatives Note (Note 10) identified the following Client agreed this was a mistake and amended the disclosure. The net value of v
L%errors: derivatives was unchanged. The note was adjusted to remove £77m bought, £101m sold
ransposition errors between currency bought and currency sold for those and £257k net gain out of the GBP to USD less than one month line to create a new line in
Hinstruments with a settlement date of 6-12 months. the table.

Misclassification of some investments as having a settlement date of

within one month of year end, when in fact they had a settlement date of

28/04/23, which is >1 year.

Our contributions testing identified some reconciliation differences The differences have not been adjusted for as their cause is unknown. v

between monthly i-connect payroll listings and transaction listing for

employee contributions. The total difference was £3.5m.

The sensitivity of assets valued at Level 3 which was disclosed in the draft We recommended that these were adjusted and management processed the v

version of Note 24 included incorrect calculations. The 'Property’ and 'Fund ~ amendment.

of Hedge Funds' 10% value on increase and 10% value on decrease were

incorrectly stated.

In the draft version of Note 24, we identified that the pooled investments We recommended that this was adjusted for clarity of disclosure, and management v

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

25



Commercial in confidence

C. Audit Adjustments

of financial statements.

Impact of estimation differences
The table below provides details of estimation differences identified during the 2020/21 audit which have not been adjusted within the final set

Pension Fund Account Net Asset Statement Impact on total net Reason for
Detail £°000 £°000 assets £°000 not adjusting
Testing of Level 2 investments 9,289 9,289 9,289  Amount is not
identified a potential an error, but
understatement of the estimate estimation
difference
Testing of Level 3 investments -8,640 -8,640 -8,640  Amount is not
identified a potential overstatement an error, but
of the estimate estimation
difference

Overall impact £649 £649 £649

Impact of prior year unadjusted misstatements

There were no unadjusted misstatements in the prior period.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 26



Commercial in confidence

D. Fees

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

Reconciliation of Audit Fees to Financial

Audit fees Proposed fee Final fee Statements

Pension Fund Audit Scale Fee 22,180 22,180 The Fund disclosed Audit Fees relating to
2021/22 of £141,655 in it’s statements

Additional Fees previously raised* 19,475 19,475 (included within the Audit Fee note as part

of External and internal Audit costs).

Additional Fees: Our proposed fees for 2021/22 are £53,655.

Reconciliation issues: benefits, Purchases & Sales 5,000 The difference of £12,000 relates to the
proposed additional fees included in this

Prior period Adjustment discussions 2,500 report.

-dDifficuItg obtaining IT evidence 1,000

QD

Sperivatives 3,500

S

Wrotal audit fees (excluding VAT) £141,655 £53,6656

*Additional fees previously raised relate to those included in the prior period and are as a result of increased requirements of
the regulator, new ISAs and new audit approaches.

The Fund disclosed Audit Related Fees for
2021/22 of £7,000 in it’s statements.

Non-audit fees for other services Proposed fee Final fee

Our proposed fees for 2021/22 are £12,000
IAS 19 work 7,000 12,000 The difference of £6,000 relates to the
Total non-audit fees (excluding VAT) £7,000 £12,000 proposed additional fees included in this

report.

The proposed fees for our IAS 19 letters of assurance to admitted body auditors has increased by £5,000 since planning. This reflects the additional work undertaken this year to
enable us as the Pension Fund auditor to respond to the increased number of areas for assurance sought by the admitted body auditors. We anticipate these higher fees to
continue going forward.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 27



vt abed

o Grant Thornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



Agenda Item 12

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: |Pension Board — Avon Pension Fund

MEETING 8" December 2022 AGENDA

DATE: ITEM
NUMBER

TITLE: Internal Audit Update

WARD: ALL

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:

Appendix 1 — Pensions Payroll
Appendix 2 — COP14, Maintaining Contributions & Member Information

1 THE ISSUE

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update on Internal Audit
activity since the last report to the Pension Board on 215t September
2021.

1.2  The report and its appendices are important for the Board to consider in
the context of their understanding of the performance and management
of the fund.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Pension Board is asked to note the report and outcomes of the
Internal Audit work carried out on the Avon Pension Fund.

3 THE REPORT

2021-22 & 2022-23 Internal Audit Work

3.1 Internal Audit provides independent assurance that the Avon Pension
Fund's (APF) risk management, governance and internal control
processes are operating effectively. To do this, we schedule an annual
programme of internal audits of APF governance and operations. The
areas we review are identified from our annual internal audit planning
process used to assess risks to the Pension Fund.

Page 45



3.2  Since the last Internal Audit update report presented to the Pension
Board on 215t September 2021, we have issued three reports (two of the
reports are attached as appendices to this report).

Audit Assurance Opinion Appendix
1. Pensions Payroll Substantial 1
2. COP14, Maintaining Substantial 2
Contributions & Member
Information
3. APF Cyber Essentials N/A — Briefing Paper

3.3 Interms of the two ‘Assurance Reports’ (Pensions Payroll & COP14)
there weren’t any significant weaknesses reported and a ‘Substantial
Assurance’ rating was assigned. Internal Audit have also issued a
‘Briefing Paper’ on Cyber Essentials which is scheme providing a
baseline level of cyber security controls and measures.

3.4 Based on the Pension Fund reliance on IT systems and data, cyber
security is a significant risk and it is important that the Pension Board are
provided with assurance that the risks are being managed and a robust
control framework is in place. The APF Cyber Essentials briefing paper
will be a separate item on this Pension Board’s meeting agenda.

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS

4.1 There are no specific statutory considerations related to this report.
Accounts & Audit Regulations set out the expectations of provision of an
Internal Audit service. This is supported by S151 of the Local Government
Act and CIFPA Codes of Practice and the Il1A professional standards for
delivery of an adequate Internal Audit Service.

5 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)

5.1 There are no direct resource implications relevant to this report.

6 RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1 A proportionate risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations
has been undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision-making risk
management guidance. Significant risks to the Pension Fund arising from
an ineffective Internal Audit Service include lack of internal control, failures
of governance and weak risk management. Specific risks include
supplementary External Audit Fees and undetected fraud. Internal Audit
provides assurance and assists the Pension Fund in identifying risks,
improvement areas and recommending good practice.

6.2 The Pension Fund has specific responsibility for ensuring the Pension
Fund’s Risk Management and Financial Governance framework is robust
and effective.

Page 46



7 EQUALITIES

7.1 A proportionate equalities impact assessment has been carried out using
corporate guidelines and no significant issues have been identified.

8 CLIMATE CHANGE

8.1 There are no direct climate change implications related to this report.

9 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

9.1 No other options to consider related to this report.

10 CONSULTATIONS

10.1 The Council's Section 151 Officer has had the opportunity to input to this
report and has cleared it for publication.

Contact person  Andy Cox (01225 477316) / Tarig Rahman (01225
477256)

Background
papers

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an
alternative format

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



Appendix 1

Internal Audit Report

Confidential

Avon Pension Fund (APF)
Pensions Payroll

September 2021

Page 49



Internal Audit Report — APF - Pensions Payroll - 21-027B

Executive Summary

Audit Opinion:

Assurance Rating

Opinion

Level 5 - Full
Assurance

The systems of internal control are excellent with a number of strengths, no
weaknesses have been identified and full assurance can be provided over all the areas
detailed in the Assurance Summary.

Level 4 - Substantial
Assurance

The systems of internal control are good with a number of strengths evident and
substantial assurance can be provided as detailed within the Assurance Summary.

Level 3 - Reasonable
Assurance

The systems of internal control are satisfactory and reasonable assurance can be
provided. However, there are a number of areas detailed in the Assurance Summary
which require improvement and specific recommendations are detailed in the Action
Plan.

The systems of internal control are weak and only limited assurance can be provided
over the areas detailed in the Assurance Summary. Prompt action is necessary to
improve the current situation and reduce the levels of risk exposure.

The systems of internal control are poor, no assurance can be provided and there are
fundamental weaknesses in the areas detailed in the Assurance Summary. Urgent
action is necessary to reduce the high levels of risk exposure.

Assurance Summary:

Assessment Key Control Objectives
Good Management reporting is relevant, accurate and timely.
Good Statutory returns are compiled accurately and submitted by deadline dates.
Good Payments are accurate, timely and only made to eligible recipients.
Good F_’ayments.and related information are accurate and sent to external organisations on a
timely basis.
Good Payroll reconciliations are undertaken regularly with the main financial system.
Good System access is appropriately restricted.

Pagg 50




Internal Audit Report — APF - Pensions Payroll - 21-027B

Detailed Report
Opinion

Internal Audit has undertaken a review of the controls over the Avon Pension Fund (APF) Pensions Payroll. The
framework of internal controls has been assessed and given an assurance rating of “Substantial Assurance’. A total
of five audit recommendations are detailed in the Action Plan.

Scope and Objectives

The scope and objectives of our audit were set out in the Audit Brief and a summary of our opinion against each of the
specific areas reviewed has been detailed in the Assurance Summary section above.

Context & Audit Comment

B&NES Council administers the Avon Pension Fund on behalf of approximately 464 employing bodies mostly situated
in the former Avon County Council area. The four unitary councils account for circa. 50% of the contributing members.
The total number of scheme members as at 31 March 2021 was 125,322, of whom 31% were contributors, 28% were
pensioners, 34% deferred pensioners & 7% undecided leavers.

There are 89 Councils which administer the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) in the United Kingdom and
the Avon Pension Fund is one of the larger funds, with circa £4.5bn value.

The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is a statutory scheme, with all benefits guaranteed. The LGPS
provides pensions based on final salary for service until 31 March 2014 and on Career Average Revalued Earnings
(CARE) for service accruing from 1 April 2014.

The B&NES Member Services and Pensions Payroll teams are responsible for the enrolment, calculation, payment,
financial reconciliations, and overall management of pension salaries to retired members of the Avon Pension Fund
(APF).

The APF Pensions Payroll service has seven payroll interfaces that are reconciled into the main Payroll system and
these are:

901 - Officers (main run)
903 - Fire Brigade

999 - Fire, other schemes
904 - Manuals

975 - Teachers

977 - Teachers

976 - Crombie

Payroll reconciliations are completed on a weekly and monthly basis, with separate weekly and monthly control
accounts carried out to verify the financial totals. The audit review covered all seven payroll interfaces, payroll
reconciliations and all major functions of the Pensions Payroll process.

Overall, the control framework in place and operating for the management of the Pensions Payroll was found to be
effective. Good practice was apparent in several areas reviewed and these are detailed in the section below.

Pagg 51



Internal Audit Report — APF - Pensions Payroll - 21-027B

We identified the following strengths:

There are good checks and measures in place over missed pay runs and overpayments. These include:
clear timelines for processing, review and sign off on all calculations and an error report triggered by missed
BACS pay runs. To date, this error report has not been required as no pay runs have missed deadline.

Payments to members are consistently accurate and occur within the allocated timeframe for both ad-hoc
payments and the monthly Pensions Payroll.

Monthly and annual returns to HMRC are checked by a senior accountant and independently verified before the
payment is made.

For April 2020 to date (August 2021), all parameter data and tax rates have been updated correctly. Controls
for this area include an independent check before senior authorisation for all updates.

The National Fraud Initiative data, alongside internal reporting, is regularly reviewed and to date no fraudulent
activity has been identified.

For the financial year 2020/21, imbalances and exceptions on monthly payroll BACS runs and all rejected
payments have been investigated and resolved in full. For the financial year 2021/22 to date, 90% of these
have been investigated and resolved. The remainder (10%) are more recent and are awaiting responses from
members.

New retirees are added to the payroll system accurately and in a timely manner. All new retiree pension details
are checked and then independently authorised by a senior officer before pension scheme payments start.

A new retiree’s identity is verified before pensions scheme payments begin.

Payroll reconciliations are undertaken completely, accurately and on a timely basis, in line with all associated
documented procedures.

There is a separation of duties in place between making BACS payments and processing payroll amendments.
The Pensions Payroll system is known as Altair and it holds a full audit trail of all member details and records.

When amendments are made to member records, two pension staff are involved in the process (one staff to
action the amendment and another to check that member details have been amended accurately).

System access to Altair is properly authorised for all users and access is appropriate for officer roles and
responsibilities.

All payroll system users have unique usernames, log in details and passwords.
Altair payroll system access levels are reviewed routinely, with any anomalies investigated and resolved. The
Altair users’ list is up to date with no duplications and all users have a unique Journal Reference, unique Email

and a National Insurance number recorded.

The National Insurance number of each user is utilised by Altair as a safety measure to ensure that pension
staff cannot edit their own details on the payroll system.

Pagg 52



Internal Audit Report — APF - Pensions Payroll - 21-027B

We identified the following weaknesses

Comprehensive Policies and Procedures for Pensions Payroll are in place, but these have not been reviewed
and updated on a regular basis, some documents have not been reviewed since 2014.

Monthly exception reports do not include a check of multiple payments to the same bank account, instances of
which may be an indicator of error (duplicate payments or potentially fraudulent activity).

The monthly and year-end payroll reconciliation adopted procedures do not require formal check and approval
by a qualified senior officer.

The Pension Fund relies on the gov.uk “Tell us Once Service” and the biennial National Fraud Initiative to
identify non-declared deceased pensioners. There is a requirement to notify the Pension Fund of the death of a
member but for a number of reasons the death may not be reported.

Altair does not force a two person check on member detail amendments. It is recognised that a two-person
manual check is currently a process conducted by the two members of the team, but this is an unrealistic task
when staff are not office based.

Audit & Risk Personnel

Auditor: Alec Austin
Audit Manager, IT and Finance: Tariq Rahman
Head of Audit: Andy Cox

Acknowledgements

Sincere thanks to Sally Brewer, Anna Capp, Matt Williams, David Richards, Hannah Dawson, Vicky Brasier and Marc
Goodman for all their help and assistance throughout the Audit Review.

Pagg 53



*a|qissod sI buniodai Joy Ayjeuonouny Ji
uleuaose 0} ‘poomAsy ‘Jepinoid aiemyos
0} 9peuw aq 0} }sanbay :s)uswWwon

‘dde) euuy ‘isbeuepy
$82IAIBG JaqWa)\ 1139140 dqisuodsay

'220C 94 15| :a)eq uonejuawajdu|

paalby

‘sjodal uondaoxs
Bunsixs Jayjo ay) se Aouanbaly swes sy} yim jno
paLIed 8 pinoys $y28yd asay) ‘a|qissod si i J|

"Junodoe
yueq swes ayj 0} poliad JuswAed s|buls e

ul syuawAed s|diynw Ayuspi 03 sunno. sonhjeue
elep alseq e 1no Auied Jo Jodal uondsaxe

ue ajelauab 0} a|qissod si )i Jayiaym ayebnsaaul
p|noys Japea] wea] [|oJAed suoisuad ay|

SO
[eloueul e Jnoul Aew 44y 8y

sjuswAed ajdinw 108)8p 0} S¥28YD

yoiym senssi Ayuapi 03 sun. Aed ||e
Jo} pajelauab a.e spodas uondaoxg

"sji0day uondaoxs

10 8)Ins 8y} Jo Jed Se Jno paled
JOU BJ. JUN02J. YUB] BWES U} 0}
‘JOABMOH *J0JJ8 Ul passao0.d W
Buieq syuswAed uljnsas pnoo

Bunoday uondaaxy jjoihed

‘Jomaig A|jes ‘Jspea wes|
lloied suoisuad :18914Q |qisuodsay

2207 |udy 15| :8jeq uonejuswajdw

poalby

*Aj91eJN20R PapuUBWE Usa] aARY S|iejap JaquisL
1By} 8sLIoYINe pue ¥08yd 0} Jesn Jayjoue

pUB JusLWIpUBLWE dY) UONO. 0} Jesn Wa)sAs

U0 - $5900.1d JUBWPUSLWIE [Ie)ap Jagquial 8y}

Ul POAJOAUI 8q 0} SUOSIad om) 8210} PINOM Jey)
Pa)EaJo 8 UBD SMOI}JOM JBUJaYM BUILLIBIBP 0]
pajediisaAul aq pjnoys sisjewieled Wa)sAs Jieyy

‘|led) ipne ajenbapey

‘919081 0) PASEQ 80110 JoU a.e Jjels

MBU 8L} S8LI003( BuiyIom awoy sy

"uonejusWINOOpP Ubis pue MalAs.

9OUIS 9|qISes} 10U SI Sjuswpuswe
Jaquiaw uo yoayo uosiad | ¢
OM] |enuUBW JU8.INd 8y} ‘[euwlou

Page 54

sjusWpuaWY |lejaq Jaquiajy

‘dde) euuy ‘Jsbeuepy
$82IAIBG Jaqual\ 139140 d|qisuodsay

220 99 15| :e3eq uonejuawaldu|

poalby

"MaIAB) JO ajep "B

sajepdn JusWNOOp PJ0JaI 0} PBJ[0J}UOI UOISIA -
‘8)ep 0} dn Apuenodwi pue ‘JueAsjs.

‘9)eJnd2. S| UIYIM PaUIBJUOI UOIBWIOUI

a1 1By 8Insus 0) SISeq [enuUE Ue U0 PAMBIAL -

:ale sainpacold g
sa101|0d ey} 8INSUB PINOYS SISO 44V Joluss

* 8on0eud 1884, Yiim aul|

Ul JNO PaLLI_I JOU JO N0 pPaLLIed
JOU 8.e )8 SH08YD / SUONOE pue
3)ep JO Jn0 aJe Jels ulel} / apinb
0} pasn sainpadold ¥ $a101j0d

‘siseq Jejnbal

B U0 pajepdn pue pamaiAa. Jou N
ale asay) Inq ‘yels Aq asn ul ale
|[0JABd SUOISUS 0} $8INP8I0IJ
pue sa101j0d aAIsuayaidwion
$2INPad0Id g S9191|0d

ajeq uonejuawsajdw
sjuswwo?) juswabeuep
12910 3jqisuodsay

(s)uonepuswwossy

%SIY [enuajod Jo uonealjduw|

puno4 ssauyeapp

FANSOdX3 MSIAH NNIAIN

Ue[d UoRoY

€.20-12 - llo1ked suoisuad — 4dV — Hoday Jpny [eusajul




"uoijesljdde ayy

Joddns Jou $80p ainjanselul || [1ouno)
JuauInd 8y Ing ‘Bunyosyd Ayjeuow

1o} 80e(d Ul S| 10BJUOD / :SJUBWIWOY

‘dden euuy ‘Jabeuep
$92IAIBG QW) 13910 dqisuodsay

'7202 90 15| :9)eq uonejuswa|dw)

paalby

10/pue g\\d Pue ‘paniadal si asuodsal ou aiayp|

‘uoisuad e Joj 9|qibije |Ins aJe Aay)

1Byl wJyuod pue (44vy 8yl Aq paulwisiep) abe
palyi0ads B JBAO S3a118J JOBJUOD PINOYS JopeaT
wea| ||oiAed suoisuad ay) ‘siSeq [enuue ue uQ

"sJauoisuad Jo snje)s pesesssp ay)

UIBLIB0SE 0] S|00) [eonAjeue e1ep YIiM pauIgquiod
8 p|N0d J8Y) S82.N0S Bjep [enusjod ajebisaAul
pInoys JepesT wes] [j0iAed suoisuad 8y

‘pun4
UOISUS 8y} 0} SIS0 43Ul [[IM
‘sjuswAedisno Jo uonealuspl
Buimojjo} ‘uonoe Alanodal pue
$S0] [eloueuly e Jnoul Aew 44y

‘paliodal aq jou Aew

U)eap a8y} SUOSeal JO Jaquinu e o}
INQ JaqWIBW B JO yesp 8y Jo pun4
uoisuad ayj Ajjou 0y Juswalinbal
B Sl a1y "siauoisuad pasesdsp | Z7
paJejoap-uou Ajjuspl 0} sAlen Ul
pne.l4 [eUoleN [eluusiq sy}

pue 82IAIBS 80UQ SN |18, Yn'A0b
U} UO SdI|31 pun4 uoisuad ay |
SI3U0ISuUdd paseass(

UoNesLoyINe yym
PaJl} pUB PAABS 8 [[IM SWa)l PajIou0dal
3y} JO JOUS U98I0S Y "Pajioucoal

90UO 0SS3IBY UIYIM NYN UMO S}l 3
USAIB SI UONeIIoU0D8) YOBT :S)UsWwWon) 2
T
‘Spieyory Joolyo |
pIABQ ‘(SuoISUay) Jobeuely swashg Jojuas payfenb e Aq [eroidde
9 80UBUI 199140 d|qIsuodsay "paule}al 8q pinoyYs S)o8yo Pue %08y [ewlo} aainbai Jou op
9S8y} JO pJodal e pue 0ssalby Ul ps|louodsl sainpaooid pajdope suoijel(ouods)
1202 1890100 15| :8)eq uoijeuawajdwy ale S)JUNOWE dY) 810j9q Sa.nbly uoneluoda) | PBJOBLI0d pue panuapljou ale | |joihed pus-ieak pue Ajyuow ey
loiAed ay) ancidde pue mairal pinoys sJoud Bununodoe Ji paje)s-siw uonesLioyny
paalby Jabeue|y swajsAg pue soueul4 SUOISUsd 8y aq p|N09 S)UBWS}E)S |eloueul4 uoljel|Iou09ay |johed
ajeq uonejuawajdw
Sjuawwo?) juswabeuep
199140 9|qisuodsay (Ss)uonepuswwosay ySIY [e13udjod jo uonjesidwy puno4 ssauyesp
JUNSOdX3 MSIH MO

Ue|q uonoy

€.20-12 - ll0oJked suoisuad — 4dV — Hoday Jpny [eusaju|




‘uonebiseaul Jayunj buipuad junodoe

Page 56

ay) Bulpuadsns 0} UsAIB 8q p|nOYS UONRISPISUOD
‘spJooal ajep 0} dn ou pjoy 8oUQ SN (1oL

8.20-1Z - 1104Ked suoisuad - 44V - Hoday ypny [eusaju|



Appendix 2

Internal Audit Report
Confidential

Avon Pension Fund — Pensions
Governance Code of Practice
(COP14) — Maintaining
Contributions and Member
Information

July 2022

Page 57



Internal Audit Report — Avon Pension Fund - COP14 Maintaining Contributions & Member Information - 21-024B

Executive Summary

Audit Opinion:

Assurance Rating

Opinion

Level 5 - Full
Assurance

The systems of internal control are excellent with a number of strengths, no
weaknesses have been identified and full assurance can be provided over all the areas
detailed in the Assurance Summary.

Level 4 - Substantial
Assurance

The systems of internal control are good with a number of strengths evident and
substantial assurance can be provided as detailed within the Assurance Summary.

Level 3 - Reasonable
Assurance

The systems of internal control are satisfactory and reasonable assurance can be
provided. However, there are a number of areas detailed in the Assurance Summary
which require improvement and specific recommendations are detailed in the Action
Plan.

The systems of internal control are weak and only limited assurance can be provided
over the areas detailed in the Assurance Summary. Prompt action is necessary to
improve the current situation and reduce the levels of risk exposure.

The systems of internal control are poor, no assurance can be provided and there are
fundamental weaknesses in the areas detailed in the Assurance Summary. Urgent
action is necessary to reduce the high levels of risk exposure.

Assurance Summary:
Assessment Key Control Objectives
Satisfactory 1. Records are complete and accurate, and managed in-line with regulatory
requirements.
Good 2. Payments of contributions are effectively monitored to identify late or failed
payments, in a timely manner.
Excellent 3. Late payments are properly assessed and reported to the regulator, where
appropriate.
Excellent 4. Timely and complete benefit statements are provided to members.
Excellent 5. Comprehensive information is made available to members and other relevant
persons, and compliant with regulatory requirements.

Page 58




Internal Audit Report — Avon Pension Fund - COP14 Maintaining Contributions & Member Information - 21-024B

Detailed Report
Opinion

Internal Audit has undertaken a review of the risks and controls related to Avon Pension Fund — Pensions Governance
Code of Practice (COP14) — Maintaining Contributions and Member Information and assessed the framework of
internal control at Level 4 — Substantial Assurance. A total of 6 audit recommendations are detailed in the Action Plan.

Scope and Objectives

The scope and objectives of our audit work were set out in the Audit Brief and a summary of our opinion against each
of the specific areas reviewed has been detailed in the Assurance Summary section above.

Pagg 59



Internal Audit Report — Avon Pension Fund - COP14 Maintaining Contributions & Member Information - 21-024B

Context & Audit Comment

The Public Services Pensions Act 2013 (the 2013 Act) is the primary legislation introduced by the government to
provide greater transparency, simplicity and certainty around Public Sector Pensions. The 2013 Act introduced new
governance arrangements for public sector service pension schemes. Regulatory oversight is provided by The
Pensions Regulator (TPR). The 2013 Act permits TPR to issue Codes of Practice (COP) in relation to public service
pension schemes.

Through the Codes of Practice, TPR gives practical guidance to scheme managers on how to comply with the legal
requirements of pensions regulation. As of May 2022, there are 15 COPs that provide guidance over a wide range of
topics, including breach reporting, trustee knowledge and governance and administration. TPR has issued a draft new
Single Code of Practice, which sets out proposed new governance standards for pensions schemes and will be a
consolidation of 10 out of the 15 existing COPs, as well as a significant update and extension of the existing codes.
The Single Code of Practice is expected to come into force by the summer of 2022,

The current COP14 is particularly directed at scheme managers and the members of pension boards of public service
pension schemes and connected schemes. Scheme managers must comply with various legal requirements relating to
the governance, management administration of public service pension schemes. Pension boards must also comply
with certain legal requirements, including assisting scheme managers in relation to securing compliance with scheme
regulations and other legislation relating to the governance and administration of the scheme, any requirements of the
regulator and with any other matters specified in scheme regulations.

The Avon Pension Fund (APF) administers the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for over 440 employers
and over 120,000 members in the former Avon area. Employers include local unitary councils, universities, academies,
town and parish councils, housing associations and charities. The fund is administered by Bath & North East Somerset
(B&NES) Council, who are legally responsible for the fund. The Council delegates its responsibility for administering
the fund to the Avon Pension Fund Committee, which is its formal decision-making body.

The current audit has been conducted as part of the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan. The audit scope has focused on the
Administration aspects of the COP14, particularly: maintaining contributions and providing information to members. The
audit scope did not extend to any other elements of the COP14.

This audit was last conducted in the 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan, where the Audit Opinion was also “Level 4 —
Substantial Assurance”. Of the five risks that were reviewed as part of the audit scope, four have either received the
same assessment or improved. Controls to ensure that payments of contributions are effectively monitored to identify
late, or failed payments have deteriorated from the previous “Excellent” rating but remain assessed as “Good”.

The APF’s controls around providing information to members, such as Annual Benefit Statements (ABS) and ad-hoc
requests, such as Subject Access Requests (SARs), remain robust. Information is provided to members in a timely
manner and there are adequate controls in place to ensure completeness and quality. It was also observed that on the
isolated occasions when the deadline for a SARs was missed, there was timely remediation through staff training and
procedure updates. Additionally, whilst the controls to monitor for late or failed payments could be further improved, the
APF continues to proactively monitor and take action with employers. Consequently, there have been no reportable
breaches to TPR.

In respect of payment monitoring, it was observed that improvements have been made to the payment monitoring
spreadsheets, since the previous audit. No concerns were noted with the completeness of the spreadsheet or follow-up
actions taken by the team. However, payment monitoring can be further improved through introducing appropriate End-
User Computing controls, such as password protection and cell lockdown for key formula.

The APF continues with its programme to migrate employers to using i-Connect for submission of pensions contribution
data. At present, around 60% of employers have been migrated to i-Connect, accounting for approximately 80-85% of
the total membership base. The APF anticipates that all employers will use i-Connect for data submission by the end of
2023. Controls around i-Connect monitoring have improved since the previous audit, notably that automated tolerance

Page 60



Internal Audit Report — Avon Pension Fund - COP14 Maintaining Contributions & Member Information - 21-024B
checks have been introduced. The tolerance checks prompt the Employer Services team to query data outside of the
defined tolerance bands directly with the employer. However, further improvements are required to ensure that
adequate records of any follow-up enquiries and the outcomes are retained for accountability purposes.

The audit also identified that the APF is currently unable to recertify user access to Globalscape, which is used by the
APF to securely transfer data between the APF and employers. Whilst it is noted that Globalscape is an application
used across the Council and managed by the Council’'s IT Services on behalf of the APF, the absence of any
recertification process may mean that any incorrect access may not be identified and remediated in a timely manner
and increase the risk of personal data breaches.

We identified the following strengths:

o The APF has in place a Pension Administration Strategy and a Personal Data Retention Policy, which covers its
records retention and personal data protection practices, in-line with COP14 requirements.

o Automated tolerance checks are in place to identify any material variances in data from the previous month's
submission, and act as a prompt for Employer Services to query discrepancies with employers in a timely
manner.

o Employer Services maintains an accurate record of employers' authorised contacts, from whom they are
permitted to accept instruction. Authorised contacts are notified to Employer Services via an LGPS53 or
LGPS53A form, which is retained on the file of the employer.

o User access to Altair, i-Connect and ESS was found to be appropriately assigned to current staff members or the
employers' authorised contacts, and commensurate with expected job roles. Altair, i-Connect and ESS are key
systems used by the APF in administering pensions.

o The Avon Pension Fund (APF) Accounts team performs monthly monitoring to check that incoming contribution
payments are accurate against the expected contributions to be paid and that payments are not late or missing.

o The Avon Pension Fund's late payment procedures are documented in the APF's Pension Administration
Strategy Statement, which outlines the scenarios when financial penalties may be issued or reporting take place
to the regulator. The Accounts team also has a procedure which gives them guidance on when to escalate
missing payments to the Team Manager, for consideration for reporting to The Pensions Regulator.

o Reporting of late or failed payments to The Pensions Regulator takes place where documented materiality
thresholds are breached. No cases were identified in testing which would warrant escalation.

o Annual benefit statements are issued annually to active and deferred members, in-line with statutory
requirements.

o The production of Annual Benefit Statements for Active and Deferred members is governed by a robust Quality
Assurance (QA) process to ensure that the Annual Benefit Statements are produced in-line with statutory
requirements.

o The Avon Pension Fund's Communication Policy Statement complies with COP14 requirements and details who
it will provide information to, what information will be provided, the frequency and how information will be

Pagg 61



Internal Audit Report — Avon Pension Fund - COP14 Maintaining Contributions & Member Information - 21-024B
provided. In addition, there is clear communication to members regarding how they can change their
communication preferences.

o The Governance & Risk Advisor monitors incoming Subject Access Requests (SARs) and Freedom of
Information requests (FOIs) to ensure that the APF complies with regulatory timeframes to fulfil requests. Internal
Audit verified that remedial actions have been taken on the isolated occasions where an error has occurred.

o The APF monitors regulatory and legal sources to ensure that key information is communicated to members and
employers, in a timely manner. A log is maintained of all communications that take place via e-mails, newsletters
and the APF's websites.

We identified the following weaknesses:

o The Personal Data Retention Policy has not been reviewed annually, in-line with the APF's stated review
frequency. However, the review is already scheduled to take place in the 2022/23 financial year.

o Employer Services does not always retain adequate record of contribution data submission queries sent to
employers, or that data submissions were received from an authorised contact at the employer or Payroll
Provider.

o Employer Services does not always retain adequate evidence that Year End Declarations have been received
from employers, to attest to the completeness and accuracy of their pensions’ contribution data.

o The APF uses Globalscape for the secure transfer of files between themselves and external parties, such as
employers. Whilst Globalscape is managed by B&NES Council's IT Services on behalf of the APF, nonetheless,
Globalscape does not have a user access reporting facility and consequently, the APF is unable to gain
assurance that user access is current and appropriate, on a periodic basis.

o There is no formal review and sign-off of the monthly payment monitoring process by the team manager, on a
monthly basis. Consequently, errors may not be detected until the manager reviews as part of the quarterly
updates to the Pension Board.

o The spreadsheet used to monitor for missing and late payments is not password-protected, and key formula used
for look-ups and calculations are not locked to prevent accidental or deliberate changes.

o Thereis a lack of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) to monitor compliance with SARs and FOls reporting
timescales.

Audit & Risk Personnel
Lead Auditor: Samantha Cheung
Acknowledgements:

Sincere thanks to Geoff Cleak, Claire Newbery, Anna Capp, David Richards, Jason Morel, Carolyn Morgan and all
service staff for their help and assistance provided throughout the Audit review.

Pagg 62



"safuey sjelaqgijap Jo [eyuspiooe
JO Sl 89NpaJ 0} UoN98j0Id
(|89 JO UONONPOJIUI pUB Pasn

A|dde o} paieadde ejnwiuoj dn-300j

B 9J8YM J0LID UB paljijuspl MalAs. JIpny
[eussju| ‘Jayun4 ‘sabueyd ajelaqiep
J0 |ejuaplooe JusAa.d 0} paxoo| Jou ale
suolje|nofea pue sdn-400j Joj pasn ale
YoIym ‘syaayspealds ay) ul oenwloy
£oy ‘JanemoH -ynejop Aq Ajuo-peal

0} J8S Sl }9ayspea.ds suonnquuo?) ayL
‘pajasj0.d-piomssed Jou ale 8say} Inq
‘syuswAed aye| Jo Buissiw Joj Joyuow
0} pasn a.e s)aayspealds suonnguuo)
pue siejo BulAoj\ 8y ‘uoippe u|

"Syuow 9a.y)
0} dn Jo} pajos)ep 8q jou Aew sJoLd

™
BINWOJ [80XT A8Y BY} JO MBINSY e " i ©
'$$909E alINbal OYM Siaquisw huanbasuog “pIeog voisuad (Jdv) =
S pun4 UOISUB UOAY 8y} 0} $S$890.d a
LIE3} LjiM pa.eys AJuo pue siseq Buniodal Auapenb ay; Jo 1ed se =
220z 1snbny JejnBaJ e uo pabueyo spiomssed i MoK p e w
£1€ 1612Q UoHEIuBLIBId) JIm ‘sjeayspeaids BuLioyuow MBIABI _E.EQ e ﬁo:mcoo |uo Jabeuew
oU} JOAO S|OJJUOD PIOMSSEY @ wea) ay} ‘yuasald 1y "|o3u0o Buliojuow
SpJeyory pireq ‘BuIOHUOW AJUJUOLL B} JO J0Je|nBay suoIsuad 8y 0} JuswAed Buiwoour Ajyyuow sy Joy
‘(suoisuad) Jabeuepy swalsAS | yo-ubis Ucm.>>m._>o 1 Jobeuepy Wea| e Buniodal ul Aejap e 0} pes| pue ‘sainjie) | Jabeuew wes) e Aq Jyo-ubis pue malna.l
9 80UeUI 11991140 d|qIsuodsay Jafojdws Jo uonosyep Ajpwi-uou Jobeuew |ewloj Jo Yo e sI alay
:opnjoul 0} sainpadosd Bulioyuow ay} ul )nsas Aew sjuswiAed Buissiw
paaiby JuswAed sy 8auByUS pNOYS 44V 8YL 10 9e| Joj Buioyuow sjenbepeu; | Sjuawedueyug bunojuopy Juswied | LI
ajeq uonejuawajdu)
sjuswwo) juswabeuey
19210 3jqisuodsay (s)uonepuswwosay YSIY [e13udlod 10 uoijesljduwy puno{ ssauyeap
JUNSOdX3 MSIH WNIAIN

Ue|q uonoy
820-1Z - UOHEWLIOJU| JaqWB @ SUORNGLIU0Y BululeluIR #1.dOD — PUN] UOISU3d UOAY — Hoday Jipny [eusju]




Page 64

's10JJ8 Jay)o Aue 108)9p
JOU pIp S|03u02 Buliojuow JuswAed
ay) Jo Bunse) sjdwies Jipny [euIslU|

‘Bunoyuow yuswied ayp jo Aoeinooe
3y} uo joeduwi [elisjew e 8ABY jou

pIp Jola siy} ybnoyyje ‘sapon dnous

10 (1Y) 18N Awapeay-iin|y 109.1100Ul

820-1Z - UOHELIOJU] JaqWB\ @ SUOKNGLIU0Y BululeIUIR 10D — PUNS UOISU3d UOAY — Hoday Jipny [euaju]



‘dn Jas wes) S80INIBS

[enbiq 8y} Jo yed se pajusunoop
pue pawLuod ‘pamainsl

aq [[Im $88$820.d buLiojiuow

9 UoljepljeA ejep pue sbueyd

Jo pouad e ybnoiy) buiob ale 44y

"uoIssIuqns
ejep ayj jsuiebe paauspine
Ajiny Jou Ajpusnbasqns pue iews

Ajwn e ui safhojdwa ay)

UM SUOISSILIQNS ejep Buissiw

10 sauanb yoeaiq 8dueI9|0)

dn-pamoj|o} pey $a0IAIeS

Jafojdw3 1ey) sjes;suowsp

0} paulejal Sem 0UBPIAS
JusIolNSUI ‘SaSeD (| 04 @

‘pajou
Sem Buimoj|o} 8y} ‘suoIssILgns ejep
Jofojdwa g Jo ajdwes wopues e wo.4

"uiejdwod
B JO JuaA8 8y} Ul Ajjigejunodoe

aulwie1ap 0] 8|qi1ssod aq 10u Aew Ty)
10 |[e9a duoyd e ej payLe ussq ) ‘Apusnbasuo) ‘pauiejas skemje jou %
Sey ejep SeoURISWINIIID UIRLSI U] "Sj0euU0d Jahojdws pastioyine s1 siakojdwa sy} UM pasies usaq aAey =
. Wol} peAisasl 8le SUoISsIWQNS salenb Jey) 80USPIAG Jonamop ‘sious | &
et jueuiaBeuen EiEp [enuew jeuy M_o_ymo%g * JO uonosyep Ales yim sishojdws
pue ‘oeld a)e} Joddns 0j suoissILgNS Blep SIoHUOW
0} paau Jey suonoe dn-mojjo} Aue Wea) seomiog Jakoiduig 4y ay)
€C0C | - pue 8I0ojNO 3L "308(d 400} J0EY0O ‘AjoLL) pUE S1eInooe ‘91e|dwon | (4dv)
UYouel s} € :8)eq uonejuawadjdwy | usym ‘(suoyds|s)} / |leW-8) PaJORJUOD 9L} pue 8} el H{ddV
fauyy oym Buipnpour ‘1ofojdws pun UOISUsd UOAY 8L 0} pSHILUGNS
‘Jabeue]y sedinleS 2y} yum dn-pamoljo} a1am sauianb ejep ey} ainsus o} Ayiqisuodsal
1afojdw3 1109140 d|qisuodsay | yey; sjensuowap o) spiooal sjenbepy e Slafojdwsa auy} s ybnouy
JauuBW
:SI I8y} Jey) 0S $ainpaoo.d S)I 8oUBYUS Ajawi) e ur pajelpswas pue payiuspl Bunioyuop
paaiby pue MaIA8) pjnoys S8dIAIag Jakojdwg 4dY aq Jou Aew $J0.J3 B)ep Jaquia|y suoissiwqng ejeq Jakojdw3 | N
d)eq uonejuswajdw
sjuswwoy) juawabeuey
19910 3|qisuodsay (s)uonepuswwoasy ¥SIy [enuajod 1o uonesijdw) puno4 ssauyesp\
ANSOdX3 MSIY NNIAIN

820-1Z - UOHELIOJU] JaqWB B SUORNGLIU0Y BululelUIR 1.dOD — PUN] UOISU3d UOAY — Hoday Jipny [eulsju|




0l

Page 66

"JOBJU0D
Jakojdwsa pasiioyne ue

WOJJ PBAIBdaI SEM UOISSILNS
ejep siakojdws sy jey;
Wuod 0} 9)q1ssod Jou sem

) ‘Ajjlenuew papiwgns sem ejep
Jaquiaw a1aym ‘sesed z U|

pue ‘lsuuew

820-1Z - UOHELIOJU] JaqWB\ B SUOKNGLIU0Y BululeIUIR 10D — PUNS UOISU3d UOAY — Hoday Jipny [euaju]



L

0} 8|qeieAe suondo Jayio JepISuod

0] LI SAN®G Yim Ssiel| [im
PUE SJOBJUOD PasSLIOYINE MaIASY

*8q Jybiw aiay) suondo sAjeuls)e
1eym aiojdxa pue |epod Jakojdwa
108UUOD-| JUBLIND MBIADY

uonoy 4dv

"11 SIN®G YiiM uoepusLILLGIal
8y} pasies aAey Juswabeue 44y

;Judawwo’ Juswabeuepy

"sJap|o} ajeldoidde ayy 0}

paJoLISal SI S$809. Jey) AjliaA 0} sjgeun
Buieq 44y ays ul jnsal Aew suoda.
S$S909B JASN JO 80USSUE U} ‘JISASMOH
*1ofojdwa yoes 1o} siap|o} payloads

0} $S9208 Uim dn-}as ale sJas

"ejep
uoisuad Jajsuely Ajainoas 0} siskojdwe
a|qeus 0} adeds|eqols) sasi|iin ey}
seale 90IAI8S 8U) JO 8UO SI (4dY) pun4
UoISUSd UOAY 8y] "Ssaijed [eussixs pue
Seale 8OIAISS [I9UN0Y) UBaM}a( Sa)l} JO

age—oT

Jajsuel) 81ndas oje}l|Ioe) 0} [19Un0?) ay) »
Aq pasn uoneaidde ue s adeas|eqolo g
(L1 SIN'9g woyy poddns 19 q
- o>_§wwmuoo%w_ﬂowhw%mww aABY OYM Jo SS$800e djelidoiddeur yim
UIEN 5L € -3)eq UOREY |l SJosn JO $ased djelpawal pue Ayjuspl
Ueaq EpUEOA "Ys1l 8onpal 0} 82e|d ul S|0.3u09 Bunebiiw 0} UOIeSIUBBIO 8U} B|gRUS UOIUM
‘JoBeueyy S80IIag Jakojdw pue Aue JuswNoop puUe ‘UoNedN}Iad8) SSBJ9E Jasn UOBOIB08] SSB008 JasN dIpoLad
noMal Eo_,. ‘laBeuByy SWalsAS dlpouiad ayeyfioe} o} pejuswajdwi g pjnoys Jo Se yons sjo4ju09 Asy poddns spodal
EIOUEUL 11991330 S|qisuodsay ued buiuodas $S820€ JaSN JI BUILLIB)EP O} ¥98S 9say] "adeos|eqo|s) WOl PaoRANXd
CoE T : pInoys juswissasse sl ay] "adeds|eqo|9) |  -yoeauq ejep e ul Burynsal ‘s|enpiipul 8 Jouued spodas S$890€ JasN
10} JusWISSBSSE YSIJ B JONPU02 0} p8aU | paslioyine 0} pajolisal Ajgienbape aq
paalby 3y} S80IAIBS || 0} 8Je|easa pInoys 44y 8yl | ou Aew ejep [eiuspyuod pue jeuosiad uonesyi}Ie99y Jasn adeas|eqoo | SN
d)eq uoljejuawajdw)
sjuswwo) juswabeueyy
19910 9jqisuodsay (s)uonepuswwossy YSIY [enuajod 10 uonesijdw) puno4 ssauyeap
JHNSOdX3 MSIH WNIAIN

avco

-} - Uoljewou| Jaquial g suonnguiuo) Bululejuiel 1409 — pund uoisuad UOAY — Joday Hpny |eulaju|



¢l

Aunoas Jagho Aep-0iez se yons
‘S)ealy) [eutalxa pue se160jouyos)
Buibuey? *yess |1ounoD

1sbuowe Bunyiom pughy pue
ajowal pasealoul yim Apenaied
‘sieak ¢-z 1se| ay} ul A|gelapisuod
pabueyo sey adeospue| || 8y

JuaWIWO) PNy 1|

UBIIYNS SEM SLIgJe
[lews yum siesn sapinoid yaiym

$$900.d Jua.ind 8y jey) 1| SINSS
ypm paaibe Ajsnoiraid eaey jipny

‘paJayjeb aq o} uoneLLIojUI "PBIINJJ0 JUBAS UB YoNS Usym
8Jqeus 0} jduas diseq e sanpoud pue b___gsc:ooo_m aullIs}3p 0} Spiodal
0} 51500 JuBwdojenap aiinbel sulelal 44V oyl ‘o|i e sassedoe c.o&ma
pinom Auedwoa yoddns soinies PasLoyINeun Ue Jey JusAs ay) U] sAl(
8y Jnissa0onsun usaq 5 ney S 8} U0 paule}al ale suoleayiou

[lew-a pue ‘Ajiep paJojiuow si xogjew
Ajjeussyur eyep buipodas sseaoe 8y *J0 INO / Ul palajsuen Buag si ajy

18sn ayj joelixe o} sjdwopy 8y} Jeys Japjo} 8y} pue aj 8y} Jo sweu
"8/EM}JOS U} J0j }SOI [euoljippe ue ay} ‘Jajsuel) ajl 8y buiwioyad uos.ad
S,JI e joo] buipoday adeasieqols U} JO SWIeU 8y} SapNjoul UoKedllou
oy} oney jou op || SIN®E 8y "papeojumop Jo papeojdn

sl 3|l e usym ‘ededas|eqols) woly
uoneainou pajelsusb Ajjeonewoine
U 9AI903J S}0BJU0I Jakojdwa
pasLioyIne ay) pue wea | Aljenp eleg
"S19sN pasLoyine 9)1ouoda. suoisuad 44V 8y} ‘uonebimuw jeied uj

;Juawwo) juswabeuey ||

avzo
-} - Uoljewou| Jaquia|\ %@ suonngliuo) Bululejuie 1409 — pund uoisuad UOAY — Hoday Hpny [euaju|

Dana 69
age-oo




€l

Page 69

‘suondo aAljeuls)|e e %00| pue
ayyadde ysu ulym sulewa. ysi
[ENpISaI B JOYldaym suIwla}ep 0)
adeas|eqolo) Joj S|0.Jju0d [euls)ul
8y} MaIABJ PNoys 4dY ‘uonoe
aAoge ay) Jad se ‘Ajuanbasuo)
*8deas|eqo|9) Joj Sj0Jju0d
Bunebniw Bunsixs Jo SSeUBABYS
3} UO Joeduwil Ue 8ABY |[IM ‘SYSLI

avzo
-} - uoljewou| Jaquiap\ g suonnguiuo) Bululejuie 1409 — pund uoisuad UOAY — Hoday Hpny [eulaju|



vl

JUBLIBJE]S JljaUaq [enuue ue
anI2a1 0} Alljiqe Siequisl 8y} uo
108yJ8 [eJUBLLLIIEP B BABY JOU S80P
Jey) uoneJejasep e Jo Jaisoal-uou
8} Joj pajusLua|dul pue pamaingl
aq Jjim $s820.d e ‘Uoljippe

£¢/¢¢ Ul mainal

Abajes;s uipy ayj jo ped se
pamainal aq Jjim SIL| “Uoljesejoap
e Jo Jdiada.-uou ayj Joj paulj jou
aJe siafojdwe ‘Syd 44V 48d Sy

“Juawwo?) Juswabeuepy

€¢0¢
yoJel s € :8yeq uoneyuawajduwj

KiagmepN
alle|) ‘Jabeuey ss0IMI8S
Jofojdw3 1991140 9jqisuodsay

"uoneleaq pug
Jea A 8y Buipnjoul ‘ss8004d pu3 Jes
8y} Jo} saul|peap pue sanljiqisuodsal
SsJohojdwa uo Jesjo s Absjeng syl e
pue (yoealq
[ELISIEW B PaWIdap ale SuJaduod
ay) aJaym) sab.eyo Jo uoioa)|09
Jo} aoe|d ul aJe jey} seunpasoid
pue uoissiwqgns aje| Joj saljeuad
ay} Jo aleme Ajnj ale siafoldwy e
‘saliqisuodsal uoissiwans
EJep J1ay) JO papulwal aJe siahojdwy e
ey} ainsua
pInoys 4dv 8y} ‘Jeak [eloueul 7/€202
oy} wouj paijdde aq [Im yoiym ‘(Absyens
ay) Juswayels Absjess uonessiuiwpy
suoIsuad ay} Jo mainal pauueld sy apisbuopy

‘(syuswAed Ayeuad

Buipsebal suoisioap Aue Buipnjour)

sosodind AjjIgejun0ooe J0j paule)el

S| eJep pua Jeak Jo uoissiwqgns sje| 10
Buissiw 0y bunejal salidnb dn-mojjo4 e

:Jey} os sainpaooid

‘uoljoues Aloje|nbal
[enuajod pue Juswalels Jiauag [enuuy
ay) Ul sJolis 0} Buipes| ‘sjesnaoe

"uone.epsq
pug Jes A 8y} JO UINJaJ-Uou Jo}
pasijeuad jou ale sivkojdwa ‘Apusiing
"Jewsoy Buoim ayy Ul papiwgns

elep Jo salianb aAISSa0X ‘pud Jeak

]e Blep JO uinjal 8)e| 0} pudixe sableyd
[BUORIPPY "SUOIINQLIU0D JO JuswiAed
9Je| JO BJEP JO UOISSIWIQNS 8}eINJoeU| IO
ale| sl aJay) uaym siakojdwa o) panssi
aq Aew seuyy ‘(ABejens auy) 6102
Juswae)s Absjens uonensiuiwpy
SUOISUa S,pun4 UOISUSY UOAY 8y} Jad

*Jauuew Apwi e ul Jakojdwa

8y} WoJy uoljelejos pu JesA syl
PaAIB0al pey $80IMBS JakojdwT Jey;
papIncid sem aouapIAe ou ‘siakojdwe
0l Jo 8|dwes wopuel e Jo Jno Z uj

'9)eJndoe pue 8)9|dwiod si ejep Jaquiaw
pue [joiAed Jiay) 1ey) 1seye 0} siseq
[ENUUE UB UO UONeJe[09( pug Jesj

e 9)8|dwo9 0} palinbai ale siahojdw3

Rana 70

\>4

(=37 A

paaiby 90UBYUS pUB MaIABI PINOYs 4dY 8yl | pue a)ejdwod aq jou Aew ejep Jaquisiy uonerepaqg pugea) | v
d)eq uoljejuawajdw)
sjuswwo) juswabeueyy
19910 9jqisuodsay (s)uonepuswwossy YSIY [enuajod Jo uonealjdw puno4 ssauyeap
FHNSOdX3 MSIH NNIA3IN

avco

-} - Uoljewou] Jaquia|\ g suonnguyuo) Bululejuiey 1409 — pund uoisuad UOAY — Hoday Hpny |eulaju|



Gl

CE
payiejs Jsnl sey oym “48alQ YSIy
9 90UBLIBAOL) 8l) JO BIUBJSISSE
U] YuM Syuow BuILo?

8] 1oA0 PALIE]S 8 [[IM MBIAB) Y/

(XA
Yosep s § :ayeq uonejuswajdwi

uebio|y ukjoien
‘IOSIAPY %SIY % 92UBUIBAOL)
119910 9|qisuodsay

‘fa1104 8yy 0} sabueyo [eusiew Aq pajoaye

8 AW oYM SJaquial Wes) 44y 0 pepiroid

aq pjnoys Buluiel; ‘mainal ayy Buimojjo4

*JOSIAPY YSIY @ 80UBUIBAOL)
3y} 10} 3|NPaY0S YoM £2/2Z0 Pauued

ay) Jo Jed s1 mainal 8y Jey) pabpajmouyoe
s "4ddo 8y} 0} paubije pue ssodind
-10J-)1} SUIBWIAJ )1 JBY) BINSUS 0} PAMaIASI

"(4d@o) uonenbay uoyosiold eleq
[eJaus9) 8y} ‘0} pajiil| Jou Ing ‘Buipnjoul
suolejnbai uonoajoid ejep o) sebueyd
|elsew Joapal Ajgjenbape jou Aew

"SoNss|
9saU) SSaJppe 0} JJels 0} papirosd
Apuanbasans sem Buiuiesy yeyy papiroid
Sem 90uapIne “Ydao ayi Aq pajejndis
sAep Og 8y UIyIM HY'S e 10} papiroid
JoU sem asuodsal e aiaym paliuspl
aIam (S]04) sisenbay uonewuou|

JO Wopaal4 pue sYyS (¢ 40

g|dwes e Jo Jn0 SBSED Z IS|IYM "Sanss!
leLsjew Aue Ajuspl jou pip (sHyS)
sisenbay $$820Y 108[gng Jo Bunsa |

'020Z Jaquianop ul 8oeid %00} aepdn
Juaoal Jsow ay] *Aousnbaly mainel
PS]E]S S,puNn4 UOISUSH UOAY U} YlIM
aull-ul ‘Ajlenuue pamsiAaJ USa( Jou sey
£a1j04 uonuajey ejeq |euosiad ayl

Rana 71

=

agc

paaiby | aq pjnoys £o1j04 uonus}ay eleq |euosiad ay | fa1j04 uonuajey eyeq [euosiad ayL Kd1j04 uonjuajay ejeq jeuosiad | 11
d)eq uonejuawsajdw)
sjuswwo) jusawabeuepy
19910 9jqisuodsay (s)uonyepuswiwosay YSIY [enudjod 10 uoijesijdu puno4 ssauyeap
JUNSOdX3 MSIH MO

avco

-} - uoljewou] Jaquia|\ g suonnguyuo) Bululejuiey 1409 — pund uoisuad UOAY — Joday Hpny |eulaju|



9l

‘MolnaJ Jey) Jo
yed se paJapIsuod aq [jiM S|O %
SYYS ‘MaINdY 80UBLIBAOL) POOK)
(gvs) s.pieog Aiosinpy swayos
ayj Jo Jed se uayeuapun aq

0] 8NP SI S|dy JO MalAal e [ewlio] i

“Juawwo?) Juswabeuep

€¢0¢
yoJel\ s € :8yeq uoneyuawajduwj

uebio|y ukjoien
‘I0SIAPY %SIY % 80UBUIBAOS)
1192110 9jqisuodsay

"suonebi|qo

uonosjoud ejep Aioinjers yum aoueldwod
Jojluow 0y Juswabeuepy 44y d|qeus 0} soe|d
ur ale s|gy sjeudoidde ainsus 03 (uonosi0Id
Jeq) 90UBUISAOL) UOBWLIOJU| YIM

aSIel| p|NOYS JOSIAPY YSIY % 92UBUIBAOS) 8]

PESSERETEIETI
‘Paysaljal pue pamalral aq pjinoys Buiuiesy
pue $8s$8004d UoN28)0.1d BlEP ‘IOSIAPY

JoW aq

jou Aew suonebijqo Aiojnjess ‘ynses e
sy "pajoajapun bulob y|04 10 Ydao o}
Buiurepad Buiulesy Jo sanssi Buioinosal

"1senbal
ay} Jo 1d18oal Jo ajep ay} Buimojjo Aep
Bunpiom yyanuamy sy Aq pue ‘Apdwoud

sisanba. 0} puodsa. 0} saloyine
al|gnd sauinbal (y]04) 10y uonewJou|
JO WOpaai4 8y "Yuow Jepus|ed suo
UIYIM SYV'S e 0] puodsal 0} palinbal
aJe suonesiueblo ‘HYd4ao a8y Jepun

“(s]04) sisenba. uonewloju|

10 Wopaal] pue (syYyS) sisanbay
$S920Y 108[qng ||ny 0} SaWelBwi)
Aiojejnbas yyim aoueldwod Jojuow o)
aoe|d ul (S|gY) SI0J0IpU| BOUBWIONEY
A8y} aney jou $80p 44V 9yl

SJ10J0IpU| @0UBWIIOMA
Kay| ysenbay uoIewIoU] JO

Rana 79
U\vu e

paaiby YSIyY ¥ 80UBUIBAOS) 8y} Aq pauue|d sy Ul spuaJ) Ul )nsas Aew s|dy Jo Yoe|y | wiopaaiq g jsenbay sSa93y 30alqns | 21
d)eq uonjejuawsajdw)
sjuswwo) juswabeueyy
19910 9|qisuodsay (s)uonepuswwossy YSIY [enuajod Jo uoneaijdw puno4 ssauyesp
JUNSOdX3 MSIH MO

avco

-} - Uoljewou| Jaquial\ g suonnguiuo) Bululejuiey 1409 — pund uoisuad UOAY — Hoday Hpny |eulaju|



Agenda ltem 13

Access to Information Arrangements

Exclusion of access by the public to Council meetings

Information Compliance Ref: LGA-1119067

Meeting / Decision: Avon Pension Fund — Pension Board

Date: 8" December 2022

Author: Andy Cox / Tarig Rahman

Report Title: Internal Audit APF Cyber Essentials Review

List of attachments to this report:
Exempt Appendix 1 — APF Cyber Essentials

The exempt appendix contains exempt information, according to the categories set
out in the Local Government Act 1972 (amended Schedule 12A). The relevant
exemption is set out below.

Stating the exemption:

3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information).

The public interest test has been applied, and it is concluded that the public interest
in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosure at this time. It
is therefore recommended that the exempt appendix be withheld from publication on
the Council website. The paragraphs below set out the relevant public interest issues
in this case.

PUBLIC INTEREST TEST

If the Pension Board wishes to consider a matter with press and public excluded, it
must be satisfied on two matters.

Firstly, it must be satisfied that the information likely to be disclosed falls within one of
the accepted categories of exempt information under the Local Government Act
1972. Paragraph 3 of the revised Schedule 12A of the 1972 Act exempts information
which relates to the financial or business affairs of the organisations which is
commercially sensitive to the organisations. The officer responsible for this item

Page 73 Page 1 of 2




believes that this information falls within the exemption under paragraph 3 and this
has been confirmed by the Council’s Information Compliance Manager.

Secondly, it is necessary to weigh up the arguments for and against disclosure on
public interest grounds. The main factor in favour of disclosure is that all possible
Council information should be public and that increased openness about Council
business allows the public and others affected by any decision the opportunity to
participate in debates on important issues in their local area. Another factor in favour
of disclosure is that the public and those affected by decisions should be entitled to
see the basis on which decisions are reached.

The exempt appendix contains information relating to cyber security that if disclosed
into the public domain could prejudice the security of Council IT systems. Although
the Council aims to be transparent and accountable to the public, we must ensure
that we do not provide information which if disclosed into the public domain, could
prejudice IT security. The Council operates the majority of its services with a high
dependency on its ICT infrastructure. Many services operate almost exclusively via
information on databases, and most officers use electronic systems in daily working.
Any interruption of these systems, even for short period of maintenance, has
considerable implications for the operational activity of services across the authority.

It is also important that the Pension Board should be able to retain some degree of
private thinking space while decisions are being made, in order to discuss openly and
frankly the issues under discussion in order to make a decision which is in the best
interests of the Fund'’s stakeholders.

The Council considers that the public interest has been served by the fact that
information regarding the report has been made available — by way of the main
report. The Council considers that the public interest is in favour of not holding this
matter in open session at this time and that any reporting on the meeting is
prevented in accordance with Section 100A(5A)

Page 74 Page 2 of 2



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: | LOCAL PENSION BOARD - AVON PENSION FUND
AGENDA 7
I[\D/IE_F;ING 8 December 2022 ITEM
] NUMBER
TITLE: Breaches Report
WARD: ALL

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:

Appendix 1 - Summary of Breaches Log
Appendix 2 - Breaches Policy

THE ISSUE

1.1. The purpose of this report is to update the Pension Board on the Fund’s
Breaches Policy, procedure for recording & reporting breaches, training carried
out for Teams and breaches recorded in the last year.

RECOMMENDATION

2.1. That the Board notes the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
3.1. There are no direct implications related to the Pension Board in connection with
this report.
REPORT

4.1. REGULATORY BREACHES

4.2.The introduction of the Pensions Act 2013 extended the powers of the Pensions
Regulator (TPR) to public sector schemes from 1 April 2014. The Pension
Regulator introduced the Code of Practice 14 for the administration of public
sector schemes in 2015. This, amongst other things, addressed the issue of
Regulatory Breaches and reporting requirements.

4.3.Regulatory breaches are breaches of the regulations or standards as set out in
the Administration Strategy and if Material need to be reported to TPR as set out
in the Breaches Policy (Appendix 2).

4.4.In addition to the requirement to report Material breaches to TPR, the Pensions
Manager will formally report all breaches to the Avon Pension Fund Committee
and the Pension Board on a quarterly basis, notifying the chairs of both of any
significant issues as appropriate

4.5.In deciding whether a breach is likely to be of material significance to the
Pensions Regulator, the following should be considered:

Page 97




cause of the breach;

effect of the breach;

reaction to the breach; and

the wider implications of the breach

4.6.Breaches recorded by the Fund broadly fall into the following categories:
e Employer fines due to late or incorrect year end returns
Employer fines for disproportionate work
Employer late payments of contributions
APF failing to meet statutory requirements eg not issuing ABSs on time
Non-payment of refunds within 5 years*

4.7.Breaches are recorded on the breaches log and referred to the Pensions
Manager if considered material. If Material TPR’s online portal is used to report
the breach.

4.8.0utcomes and improvements from breaches are agreed and implemented
accordingly with employers or officers as appropriate.

4.9.A summary of regulatory breaches recorded for the period October 2021 to
September 2022 can be found in Appendix 1. There were no material breaches
recorded in this period.

4 10. 5 Year Refund Cases*

The 2013 LGPS regulations require schemes to pay a refund of contributions
within 5 years. Failure to complete payment is classified as a regulatory breach
and is required to be reported to the pensions committee and local pension
board. The National Technical Group has previously made a recommendation to
the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) to remove the requirements to pay a refund
of contributions within five years under the 2013 regulations. The SAB have
agreed to proceed with this regulatory change and are in the process of making
recommendations to DLUHC.

DATA PROTECTION BREACHES

5.1. The General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) came into force with effect
from 25t May 2018 under the Data Protection Act 2018 and replaced the earlier
Data Protection Act of 1998.

5.2. A personal data breach means a breach of security leading to the accidental or
unlawful destruction, loss, alteration, unauthorised disclosure of, or access to,
personal data. This includes breaches that are the result of both accidental and
deliberate causes.

5.3. A notifiable breach must be reported to the Information Commissioner’s Office
(ICO) within 72 hours after becoming aware of it. If it takes longer than this,
reasons for the delay must be provided.

5.4. All breaches must be reported to Banes Data Protection Officer (DPO) within 24
hours of the incident using the incident reporting template. The DPO will advise
if the incident meets the criteria for reporting to the ICO and also makes
recommendations on future preventative actions.

Page 98



5.5. A summary of data breaches reported to Banes DPO between November 2021
and September 2022 can be found in Appendix 1. No incidents were reported to
the 1CO during this period.

5.6. Procedures are in place for staff to follow and regular training takes place to
ensure that everyone has a full understanding of data protection and the
reporting procedure for breaches. Recent staff training has included:

GDPR E-Learning Induction & refresher courses

Cyber Security E-Learning

Data Protection Induction Session including homeworking tips
Data Breaches — case studies

How to recognise a data breach, Subject Access Request & Freedom of
Information Request

5.7.A GDPR project plan has been in place since 2018 in order to ensure
compliance with the new regulations. Work is ongoing as updates are required.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1. The Avon Pension Fund Committee is the formal decision-making body for the
Fund. As such it has responsibility to ensure adequate risk management
processes are in place. It discharges this responsibility by ensuring the Fund
has an appropriate investment strategy and investment management structure
in place that is regularly monitored. In addition, it monitors the benefits
administration, the risk register and compliance with relevant investment,
finance and administration regulations.

EQUALITIES

7.1. A proportionate equalities impact assessment has been carried out using
corporate guidelines and no significant issues have been identified.

CLIMATE CHANGE

8.1. The Fund is implementing a digital strategy across all its operations and
communications with stakeholders to reduce its internal carbon footprint in line
with the Council’s Climate Strategy. The Fund acknowledges the financial risk
to its assets from climate change and is addressing this through its strategic
asset allocation to Paris Aligned Global Equities Sustainable Equities and
renewable energy opportunities. The strategy is monitored and reviewed by the
Committee.

CONSULTATION

9.1 Reports and its contents have been consulted with the Head of Pensions and
Director — One West representing the administering authority.

Page 99



Contact person Carolyn Morgan - Governance & Risk Advisor — 01225
395240

Background papers

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative
format

Page 100




TOT abed

Breaches Log - 2021 / 2022

Appendix 1

Type of Breach Number | Summary of breach Detail Outcomes & Improvements
of
Incidents
Regulatory Breaches
Oct 21 to Sept 22
Employer Late Payers 27 Late or non payment of 13 employers have been late for more than 2 Support / training for
contributions consecutive months. All but one has been resolved. | employers
Employer Year End Data Tba Late or incorrect data submitted Employers Relations Team working through late TBA
returns to decide if any fines will be issued
5 Year Refund Breaches 435 Unable to pay refund within 5 year This was due either to no response from members | Member tracing continues
deadline or being unable to trace members
Other Breaches 1 Disclosure Pensions savings statement not issued to member | Reminder of process
by deadline. Process to update annual allowance provided
page on system was not carried out correctly when
member left scheme.
Data Breaches
Oct 21 to Sept 22
Reported to Information 13 3 x email breach Personal data sent by email in error Training and support to team
Governance 2 x incorrect member record update | 1 Address/1 email updated on incorrect record members provided
1 x member record not updated Post sent to member’s old address
7 x enveloping error Letter or form enclosed with incorrect member’s Printing & enveloping
letter process changed
Reported to ICO 0




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102



Avon Pension Fund
Breaches Procedure

November 2022

1. Procedure for the review and reporting of Regulatory Breaches

The introduction of the Pensions Act 2013 extended the powers of the Pensions
Regulator to public sector schemes from 1 April 2014. The Pension Regulator
introduced Code of Practice 14 for the administration of public sector schemes in
2014. This, amongst other things, addressed the issue of Regulatory Breaches and
reporting requirements.

This document deals with the process of identifying, recording and determining if
breaches of pension regulations should be reported to the Pension’s Regulator.

2. The Duty to report — legal requirement

The duty to report breaches is contained within the Pensions Act 2004 section 70.
Within this Act certain people have a legal duty to report breaches to the Pensions
Regulator where they believe that:

e alegal duty relevant to the administration of the scheme hasn’t been or isn’t
being complied with: this could relate for instance to keeping records, internal
controls, calculating benefits and, for funded schemes, includes investment
governance and administration matters

e the failure to comply is likely to be of 'material significance' to the regulator in
the exercise of its functions.

The people with a legal duty to report are

e pension board members

e any other person involved in the administration of the scheme (which includes
Committee members)

e employers

e professional advisers including auditors, actuaries, legal advisers and fund
managers

e any other person involved in advising the scheme manager in relation to the
scheme

The duty to report overrides other obligations, such as confidentiality, except where
legal professional privilege applies. Failure to report a breach without reasonable
excuse, can lead to civil penalties.

3. What is a breach of the law?

e A breach of the law is “an act of breaking or failing to observe a law,
agreement, or code of conduct.” In the context of the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) it can encompass many aspects of the management
and administration of the LGPS, including failure:

1
Page 103



to do anything required under the Regulations;

to do anything required under overriding legislation, applicable statutory
guidance or codes of practice;

to maintain accurate records;

to act on any fraudulent act or omission that is identified;

to comply with policies and procedures (e.g. the Fund’s statement of
investment principles, funding strategy, discretionary policies, etc.);

of an employer to pay over member and employer contributions on time;

to pay member benefits either accurately or in a timely manner;

to issue annual benefit statements on time or non-compliance with the Code.

For breaches to be reported to the Pensions Regulator they need to be of material
significance and specifically would include;

dishonesty

poor governance or administration

slow or inappropriate decision making practices

incomplete or inaccurate advice, or

acting (or failing to act) in deliberate contravention of the law

pension board members not having the appropriate degree of knowledge and
understanding, which may result in pension boards not fulfilling their roles, the
scheme not being properly governed and administered and/or scheme
managers breaching other legal requirements

pension board members having a conflict of interest, which may result in them
being prejudiced in the way that they carry out their role, ineffective
governance and administration of the scheme and/or scheme managers
breaching legal requirements

adequate internal controls not being established and operated, which may
lead to schemes not being run in accordance with their scheme regulations
and other legal requirements, risks not being properly identified and manage
and/or the right money not being paid to or by the scheme at the right time
accurate information about benefits and scheme administration not being
provided to scheme members and others, which may result in members not
being able to effectively plan or make decisions about their retirement
appropriate records not being maintained, which may result in member
benefits being calculated incorrectly and / or not being paid to the right person
at the right time

pension board members misappropriating any assets of the scheme or being
likely to do so, which may result in scheme assets not being safeguarded,
where a breach has been identified and those involved do not take prompt
and effective action to remedy the breach and identify and tackle its cause in
order to minimise risk of recurrence; are not pursuing corrective action to a
proper conclusion, or fail to notify affected scheme members where it would
have been appropriate to do so.

Breaches can therefor include failure to adhere to requirements set out by
Administering Authority to support the maintenance of records requirements or policy
or procedural requirements.

2
Page 104



4. Material Significance

In deciding whether a breach is likely to be of material significance to the Pensions
Regulator, the following should be considered:

cause of the breach;

effect of the breach;

reaction to the breach; and

the wider implications of the breach

When deciding whether to report, those responsible should consider these points
together. Reporters should take into account expert or professional advice where
appropriate, when deciding whether the breach is likely to be of material significance
to the Regulator.

5. Recording of Breaches

The Pensions Manager is responsible for maintaining a record of all breaches
including those which are not reported to the Regulator. The templates for recording
breaches are attached as follows:

e Appendix 1: Breaches caused by employer

e Appendix 2: Breaches caused by APF as administrator

e Appendix 3: Material Breaches

Given the scope of potential breaches and the complexity of LGPS administration for
Employers and the Administering Authority it is necessary to take a pragmatic
approach to remediation of non- material breaches based on support, training and
guidance together with remedies available to the Fund through its Administration
Strategy.

6. Resolution of non- material Employer breaches

Many non-material breaches may be resolvable through a variety of mechanisms
and where necessary the Fund will support employers to ensure they are fully aware
of their responsibilities and have appropriate arrangements in place to comply with
them. This may be achieved through training, the issue of guidance notes and or
process review to ensure that best practice is implemented. All such arrangements
will be implemented according to an agreed plan and timescale. The agreed support
will be recorded against the breach and will be formally notified to the employer.

If the employer then fails to improve a formal notification will be issued with a fine for
persistent breach and if that fails then consideration will be given to formally
reporting the failing to the Pensions Regulator

7. Material Breaches by Employers

Where it is considered that there is a material breach by an employer then the
Pensions Manager will produce a report for the Head of Pensions, who will consider
the breach in line with the Code of Practice, investigate as necessary and obtain
legal advice where required in determining the necessity to report. The Chairs of the

3
Page 105



Pensions Committee and the Pensions Board will be provided with a copy of the
report and notified of the action taken by the Head of Pensions within 10 days of
receipt of the report.

Serious breaches identified such as fraud and misappropriation will be notified to the
Regulator as soon as practicable and appropriate auditors/police authority for
investigation. Arrangements will be made with the Regulator to support the
determination of any action once the investigations have concluded.

8. Non Material Breaches by the Admin Authority

Such breaches will recorded by the Pensions Manager and improvement actions
agreed with the Head of Pensions for inclusion in ongoing Improvement plans,
Services plans or Administration Strategy as appropriate.

9. Material Breaches by the Admin Authority

These breaches or suspected breaches will be reported to the Service Director —
One West and/or the Police for formal investigation. The investigation will be
carried out by internal audit section and/or the police as required and the Pensions
Regulator notified as soon as practicable and in accordance with TPR guidance.

10.Reporting of Breaches

In addition to the requirement to report Material breaches to the Pensions Regulator,
the Pensions Manager will formally report all breaches to the Avon Pension Fund
Committee and the Pension Board on a quarterly basis, notifying the chairs of both
of any significant issues as appropriate.

If at any time the Committee or the Board disagree with the actions taken by the
Head of Pensions, then escalation will be to the Service Director — One West.

Full details of the Legal responsibilities and duties in respect of Breaches of the Law
can be found in Code of Practice 14

http://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/codes/code-governance-
administrationpublic-service-pension-schemes

4
Page 106


http://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/codes/code-governance-administrationpublic-service-pension-schemes
http://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/codes/code-governance-administrationpublic-service-pension-schemes

Appendix 1

EMPLOYER BREACHES
Bre
ach Notification Notification Penalty Penalty TPR Material
Employer Employer | Date typ Breach Potential | of breach Agreed of penalty Agreed issued issued notification significance TPR notification
name number reported | e description | penalty (1st notice) NOTES | (2nd notice) action (date) (£) (3rd notice) | Action (Yes/No) approval/sign off
U
D
S
D
=
e




Appendix 2

APF BREACHES
Potential Material significance Pension Committee Pension Board TPR

Breach type Breach description penalty Action (Yes/No) notification notification notification
T

QD
Q

(9]

H

h—4

0




Appendix 3
MATERIAL BREACHES

Employer / APF breach

Breach type

Breach description

Action

Pension Committee notified

Pension Board notified

TPR notified

50T 9bed




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 110



Agenda Item 15

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: | LOCAL PENSION BOARD - AVON PENSION FUND

AGENDA 8
I[\D/IE_F;ING 8 December 2022 ITEM
' NUMBER
TITLE: Statutory Reporting and Year End

WARD: ALL

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

THE ISSUE

1.1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Pension Board of the actions
undertaken by the Fund Administration in completion of the 2021/2022 employer
year end data exercise and other statutory annual requirements.

1.2. The law requires schemes to disclose information about benefits and scheme
administration to scheme members

1.3. The Fund has a legal statutory requirement to provide members with a benefit
statement annually by 31st August.

1.4. Where applicable the Fund has a legal statutory requirement to issue a Pension
Saving Statement (PSS) if a members’ pensions savings exceed the standard
annual tax year allowance.

1.5. The Fund has a legal statutory requirement to submit pension scheme reports
and pay tax charges to HMRC
RECOMMENDATION
2.1. That the Board notes the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1. There are no direct implications related to the Pension Board in connection with
this report.

REPORT

4.1.The introduction of the Pensions Act 2013 extended the powers of the Pensions
Regulator (TPR) to public sector schemes from 1 April 2014. The Pension
Regulator introduced the Code of Practice 14 for the administration of public
sector schemes in 2015. This, amongst other things, addressed the issue of
annual benefit statements to members.

Page 111




5.

YEAR END EXERCISE

5.1.In preparation the Fund must undertake an annual exercise to reconcile member
data supplied by employers at each 31st March year end. There are 454 active
employers of which 272 provide member data digitally to the Fund on a monthly
basis covering 86% of active scheme membership (35,139 members). The
remaining employers continue to provide data annually.

5.2.For the purpose of data accuracy, the digital monthly employer returns undergo a
reconciliation process on a continuous basis. Where the employer annually
submits a data return it invariably will require further scrutiny and employer
engagement to reconcile. The Fund is aiming to digitalise all employer returns as
part of its published Administration Strategy.

5.3.To enable the Fund to scrutinise and reconcile member data all employers are
requested to submit year end returns annually by 30" April with any subsequent
follow up queries and amendments notified to the Fund by 30" June. Where
there is a failure to provide timely or accurate information the Fund will review
each affected employer in accordance with the criteria set out in the
Administration Strategy with a view to potential penalty charges being applied.

5.4. With regard to potential employer penalty charges for 2022 the Fund identified the

following:-

4 Late returns

6 employers with data queries in excess of 10% of active membership

2 employers for disproportionate work

potentially 22 for Data Improvement Plan (DIP) notices to be issued

No employers were identified as causing a materially significant breach to
the TPR by the delay in providing information.

5.5. Administration Officers are currently undertaking a final review prior to issuing
penalty notices. All fined employers will also receive a DIP in addition to any
penalty charge with the option of receiving training in lieu of the charge if it is a
first-time occurrence.

MEMBER COMMUNICATIONS — ANNUAL BENEFIT
STATEMENTS

6.1. Officers completed work to reconcile data returns ahead of the statutory ABS
exercise. Summarily, 93.53% of active member statements were issued ahead
of the 315t August deadline. The table below details the statements sent -

Statement type and collation Total Statements Total mailing

Single Statements 28,686 28,686
Double Statements 4,366 2,183
Triple Statements* 1,083 361
Four Statements* 224 56
Five Statements™ 70 14
Seven Statements* 7 1
PSOD Single Statements* 21 21
Overseas Statements 2 2

Page 112




| Totals | 34,557 31,324 |
6.2.A further 4,339 perspective statements were extracted due to the following:

Missing Address  (093)
Casual Missing Hours/Earnings (2,425)
In-Progress Leaver (1,821)

6.3. Work is ongoing to obtain missing member CARE data and to trace any missing
addresses

6.4. Subsequently, a further 291 active member statements were issued on 24t
October as part of a supplementary ABS exercise.

6.5. Of the total active member statements produced a total of 11,384 (33%) were
also made available digitally to members with an active My Pension Online
(MPQO) account. Members with an MPO account will no longer receive a paper
statement in future years unless an option is received requesting this.

7. PENSIONS SAVINGS STATEMENTS

7.1.The Fund is required to issue a Pensions Saving Statement (PSS) if pensions
savings in the APF exceed the standard annual allowance. The annual
allowance is the maximum amount of pension saving that an individual can
make each tax year that benefits from tax relief. The standard annual allowance
is £40,000 for the 2021/2022 tax year. The statement includes information that
members must consider in determining whether a tax charge is liable.

7.2.For the 21/22 tax year the Fund engaged with Hyman’s Robertson to provide
professional consultancy support, guidance and officer training.

7.3.Detailed analysis and work undertaken by officers to complete the annual
process to assess member savings has been completed. The Fund issued 155
statements for LGPS members of which 41 were identified as having a tax
charge. A total of 15 statements were issued in respect of members of the
Firefighter's Pension Scheme, of which 3 were identified as having a tax charge.

7.4. All statements were issued ahead of the statutory deadline of 61" October.

7.5. 1t is anticipated that the number of members attracting a tax charge will increase
further next year due to the impact of Pensions Increase (Pl) on revalued CARE
and the recent NJC pay award which in most cases will inflate the pensionable
salary from November 2022 to March 2023. HMT Consideration is currently
being given to amending the revaluation date to 6 April from 1 April to increasing
number of members potentially subject to annual allowance charges.

8 Accounting for Tax — Event Reporting

8.1As a pension scheme administrator of a registered pension scheme the Fund
must send pension scheme reports and pay tax charges to HMRC.

8.2Fund officers registered with HMRC have responsibility to submit Accounting for
Tax (AFT) returns using the new Managing pensions scheme online service.

Page 113



8.3Payments made in respect of the previous 4 quarters are detailed below:-

01.10.2021 - 31.12.2021 £

1 x Annual Allowance Charge 15,180.00
1 x Lifetime Allowance Charge 26,065.00
150 x Short Service Refund Lump Sum Charge 19,099.00
01.01.2022 - 31.03.2022

3 x Annual Allowance Charge 21,777.57
202 x Short Service Refund Lump Sum Charge 37,896.10
01.04.2022 - 30.06.2022

1 x Annual Allowance Charge 12,653.00
1 x Lifetime Allowance Charge 58,044.47
396 x Short Service Refund Lump Sum Charge 45,839.31
1 x Special Lump Sum Death Benefit Charge 630.92
01.07.2022 - 30.09.2022

2 x Annual Allowance Charge 39,947.38
2 x Lifetime Allowance Charge 69,648.31
164 x Short Service Refund Lump Sum Charge 22,701.75

9 The Pensions Regulator - ANNUAL SCHEME RETURN

9.1 Public service schemes have a legal obligation to supply the Pensions Regulator
annually with certain information via a scheme return.

9.2The information required includes scheme details, employer details and
governance details. All information is completed and submitted to TPR via the
online exchange service.

9.3The annual scheme return notice for 2021/2022 was received from TPR on 23
November with a request to complete by 2" January 2023.

9.4 Officers are currently working through the return and a copy will be included at
the next Pension Board meeting.

10 RISK MANAGEMENT

10.1 The Avon Pension Fund Committee is the formal decision-making body
for the Fund. As such it has responsibility to ensure adequate risk management
processes are in place. It discharges this responsibility by ensuring the Fund has
an appropriate investment strategy and investment management structure in
place that is regularly monitored. In addition, it monitors the benefits
administration, the risk register and compliance with relevant investment, finance
and administration regulations.

11 EQUALITIES

11.1A proportionate equalities impact assessment has been carried out using
corporate guidelines and no significant issues have been identified.

Page 114



12 CLIMATE CHANGE

12.1The Fund is implementing a digital strategy across all its operations and
communications with stakeholders to reduce its internal carbon footprint in line
with the Council’s Climate Strategy. The Fund acknowledges the financial risk to
its assets from climate change and is addressing this through its strategic asset
allocation to Paris Aligned Equities, Sustainable Equities and renewable energy
opportunities. The strategy is monitored and reviewed by the Committee.

13 CONSULTATION

1.1 Reports and its contents have been consulted with the Head of Pensions and
Director — One West representing the administering authority.

Contact person Geoff Cleak — Pensions Manager — 01225 395277

Background papers Various statistical reports

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative
format

Page 115




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 116



Agenda Item 16

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING | AVON PENSION FUND LOCAL PENSION BOARD

Agenda Item

Number
MEETING | 8 December 2022

09

TITLE: Update on Legislation

WARD: All

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

1 THE ISSUES

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Pension Fund Board on the latest position
concerning the Local Government Pension Scheme [LGPS] and any proposed
regulatory matters that could affect scheme administration. An updated list is available
to view in the Modern Gov Library.

2 RECOMMENDATION
The Board is asked to:

2.1 Note the current position regarding the developments that could affect the administration
of the fund.

3 THE REPORT

The table below provides a summary of the main regulatory updates since the last meeting
covering McCloud and Pension Dashboards, including brief comment on what the implications are
for the Fund and what next steps will be. Confirmation of the new DLUHC minister is also included
for reference alongside brief comment on a couple of areas where further updates are expected in
the coming weeks, which could have implications for the administration team. Further details can
be found in the updated list which is accessible on the Modern Gov library via the following text
path — Modern Gov/Library/Avon Pension Fund/2022-2023 Quarter 03/01 Regulatory Update

Printed on recycled paper Page 117



Item Latest Position Relevant Links Action by Fund / Next Steps
New DLUHC Lee Rowley was appointed Minister of State at https://www.gov.uk/governmen No action — just to note and to acknowledge that the
Minister the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and t/ministers/parliamentary- appointment of the new minister and potential for
Communities on 27 October 2022 replacing under-secretary-of-state--172 further delays in current workstreams.
Paul Scully who had been in post since 8 July.
https://Igpsboard.org/images/O | The Chair of the Scheme Advisory Board has written
ther/Letter to Lee Rowley M to the new minister to welcome him to his new role.
P_from_ Clir_Phillips_Novemb
r2022.pdf
McCloud It is expected that the expected timing for Fund to continue work on collating/analysing data
Judgment guidance and regulations will be delayed from employers in relation to implementing the
(relative to the earlier timetable issued by remedy An officer from the Fund is also represented
DLUHC). on the scoping group setup to discuss how Funds
;,U can implement the remedy.
< It has been confirmed that certain Teachers
= will also be eligible for LGPS membership due Any delays in the relevant stages may have
B to the McCloud remedy. administrative implications given the time available
to respond/progress may be shortened.
The inclusion of certain Teachers in relation to the
LGPS remedy will also add to the administrative
burden and further guidance awaited on how to deal
with such cases.
Pension The Pension Dashboard Programme gathers https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ The Fund will continue its preparations towards
Dashboard pace with developments in a number of areas. ukdsi/2022/9780348239645/co meeting the necessary Pensions Dashboard
ntents? requirements and awaits further guidance from
The main development over recent months central bodies e.g. LGA in relation to what action
was the laying of a draft of The Pensions https://www.pensionsdashboar LGPS Funds should be considering.
Dashboard Regulations 2022 before each dsprogramme.org.uk/2022/11/
House of Parliament by DWP. These were 16/dashboards-standards- A separate update will be provided on this item in
debated on 15 November by MPs and Peers released-following- the administration report in relation to what actions
and approved. consultation/ have/are being taken by the Fund.

Printed on recycled paper



https://www.gov.uk/government/ministers/parliamentary-under-secretary-of-state--172
https://www.gov.uk/government/ministers/parliamentary-under-secretary-of-state--172
https://www.gov.uk/government/ministers/parliamentary-under-secretary-of-state--172
https://lgpsboard.org/images/Other/Letter_to_Lee_Rowley_MP_from_Cllr_Phillips_November2022.pdf
https://lgpsboard.org/images/Other/Letter_to_Lee_Rowley_MP_from_Cllr_Phillips_November2022.pdf
https://lgpsboard.org/images/Other/Letter_to_Lee_Rowley_MP_from_Cllr_Phillips_November2022.pdf
https://lgpsboard.org/images/Other/Letter_to_Lee_Rowley_MP_from_Cllr_Phillips_November2022.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2022/9780348239645/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2022/9780348239645/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2022/9780348239645/contents
https://www.pensionsdashboardsprogramme.org.uk/2022/11/16/dashboards-standards-released-following-consultation/
https://www.pensionsdashboardsprogramme.org.uk/2022/11/16/dashboards-standards-released-following-consultation/
https://www.pensionsdashboardsprogramme.org.uk/2022/11/16/dashboards-standards-released-following-consultation/
https://www.pensionsdashboardsprogramme.org.uk/2022/11/16/dashboards-standards-released-following-consultation/
https://www.pensionsdashboardsprogramme.org.uk/2022/11/16/dashboards-standards-released-following-consultation/

The rules that will ensure the stability and
security of pensions dashboards have also
been finalised and published by the PDP.

Further information can be found on the PDP
and PASA websites.

https://www.pensionsdashboar

dsprogramme.org.uk/pur/

Other areas
expected to
have
implications for
administration
team (expected
shortly)

61T abed

SCAPE Discount Rate

Response to June 2021 consultation expected
in coming weeks, including potential revision
to SCAPE discount rate.

Oasis Academy Consultation
Response to December 2021 consultation
expected in coming weeks.

CARE Revaluation Date

Consideration currently being given to
amending the revaluation date to 6 April from
1 April to increasing number of members
potentially subject to annual allowance
charges.

Once decisions emerge in these areas, depending
on the outcomes, there is likely to be knock-on
implications for the administration team, which will
need to be considered as required in terms of
resource management / stakeholder communication
/ process changes etc.

Printed on recycled paper



https://www.pensionsdashboardsprogramme.org.uk/pur/
https://www.pensionsdashboardsprogramme.org.uk/pur/

4 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The administrative and management costs incurred by Avon Pension Fund are recovered
from the employing bodies through the employer’s contribution rates.

4.2 Any other specific financial implications will be reported as appropriate.

5 RISK MANAGEMENT

5.1 Arisk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been undertaken, in
compliance with the Council's decision making risk management guidance.

6 EQUALITIES STATEMENT

6.1 A proportionate equalities impact assessment has been carried out using corporate
guidelines and no significant issues have been identified.

7 CLIMATE CHANGE

7.1 The Fund is implementing a digital strategy across all its operations and
communications with stakeholders to reduce its internal carbon footprint. The Fund
acknowledges the financial risk to its assets from climate change and is addressing this
through its strategic asset allocation to Low Carbon Equities and renewable energy
opportunities. The strategy is monitored and reviewed by the Committee.

8 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

8.1 None

9 CONSULTATION

9.1 The report has been consulted with the Head of Pensions and Director — One West and
have cleared it for publication.

Contact person

Geoff Cleak, Pensions Manager; Tel 01225 395277

Background
papers

LGA Bulletins
SAB Meeting Minutes
National Technical Group Meeting Minutes

alternative format

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an

Printed on recycled paper

Page 120




Agenda Item 17

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING: | LOCAL PENSION BOARD - AVON PENSION FUND

AGENDA 10
I[\D/IE_F;ING 8 December 2022 ITEM
' NUMBER
TITLE: Risk Management Update — Risk Register

WARD: ALL

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:

Appendix 1 - Avon Pension Fund Risk Register
Appendix 2 - Avon Pension Fund Risk Management Policy

THE ISSUE

1.1. The purpose of this report is to update the Pension Board with the new risk
management policy and new look risk register.

2, RECOMMENDATION
2.1. That the Board notes the report.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1. There are no direct implications related to the Pension Board in connection
with this report.

4, REPORT — RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS & RISK REGISTER

4.1.The Fund has reviewed its risk management process and documented it in a
new risk management policy attached as appendix 2.

4.2. The policy sets out the Fund’s approach to risk, process for review and update
of the risk register and also sets out the roles and responsibilities of all those
involved in the management of risk within the Fund including the role of the
Pension Board and Pension Committee.

4.3.The new risk register is attached as appendix 1.

e The risk register identifies risks which could have material impact on the
APF in terms of service, value, reputation, or compliance. And it sets out
mitigating actions.

e The risk register is reviewed quarterly by APF management and reported to
the Pension Committee and Pension Board every quarter.

e Allrisks are also reviewed when there has been a material change to the
risk.

e Risks fall into the following categories, owned by the relevant member of
the APF management team:

Page 121




Category of Risk Risk Owner
Administration Pensions Manager
Regulatory Technical & Compliance Advisor
Governance Governance & Risk Advisor
Employers (Funding) Funding & Valuation Manager
Employers (Data) Employer Services Manager
Investments Investments Manager
Finance Finance & Systems Manager

4.3.1. The risk register sets out how risks are linked to the relevant Fund
strategy documents and how they are reported to Pension Committee and
Pension Board.

5. EQUALITIES

5.1. A proportionate equalities impact assessment has been carried out using
corporate guidelines and no significant issues have been identified.

6. CLIMATE CHANGE

6.1.The Fund is implementing a digital strategy across all its operations and
communications with stakeholders to reduce its internal carbon footprint in line
with the Council’s Climate Strategy. The Fund acknowledges the financial risk
to its assets from climate change and is addressing this through its strategic
asset allocation to Paris Aligned Global Equities, Sustainable Equities and
renewable energy opportunities. The strategy is monitored and reviewed by
the Committee.

7. CONSULTATION

7.1.The Report and its contents have been discussed with the Head of Pensions
and the Director — One West representing the administering authority.

Contact person Carolyn Morgan - Governance & Risk Advisor —
01225 395240
Background papers None

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an alternative
format

Page 122




€21 abed

Appendix 1

Risk Number Risk Impact Mitigating Actions / Control Framework PC/PB Review [ ImpactLevel |  Likelihood [ Risk Score | Trend Current Factors Risk Score |  Risk Owner | Next Review Date |
Administration
All aspects of service delivery are considered and set out in . N
The Fund's ability to deliver the the Fund's Administration Strategy and Service Plan, | ~dMinistration Strategy reviewed every
Poor member outcomes and/or breach of three years. Service plan reviewed
NRO1 administration service to members and including the Communications Strategy and plan to improve A . Critical Possible 15 Pensions Manager Mar-23
regulations. . annually in March. KPIs reviewed every
employers within the agreed standards digital services. KPls and complaints are monitored and
quarter.
reviewed.
Regulatory
Regulatory changes are monitored via LGE resources and
Regulatory changes will impact ability to|  Beach of regulations, poor member professional advisors. Officers attend SWAPOG/Tech P e TS
outcomes, increased workloads for Group. Project plans are monitored in the Service Plan.
deliver service in accordance with LGPS =<b s Plan updates given periodically to PC/PB. Technical &
NR02 d wid Political officers and the Investment Regulatory breaches and IDRP cases are monitored and e e e e T Low Unlikely 4 v Mar-23
U b os . o el |cah Pressures|  gyrateqy Statement may have to change if | reviewed. Officers respond to consultations. Asset allocation | c9"'a10™Y December Y
(063 LA TERES SO =S political pressure directs how we invest. | decisions must contribute to investment objectives set out in . Levelling up agenda
the Investment Strategy Statement.
Governance
Pension Committee cannot operate Representation of PC is set out in Fund's representation
effectively due to knowledge and | Delays in decision making for the Committee|  policy, knowledge requirements in Training Policy, and PN,
NRO3 understanding of members and election | and Fund. Failure to meet MIFID & TPR against statutory req in G review annually in June. Medium Unlikely 6 Low engagement with training modules Advisor Mar-23
cycles impacting consistency of regulations. Compliance Statement. Responsibility for decisions are set
membership out in the decision making matrix.
The governance of the Fund is not in SR o) B R
accordance with BANES and APF | Fines for non-compliance, disciplinary issues| A7"Ua) plan of intemal and external audits. Managers and | -\ o) 2t report in December and ; Governance & Risk
NRO4 | puer ¢ " d e u(anoﬁa\ o officers undertake training in accordance with the Council e At Y e Medium Unlikely 6 e Mar-23
policies and codes of practice an: 2 - and APF's codes of practices and standards. 9 P : TPR Single Code of Practice
internal controls are not adequate
One West acts as Data Protection Officer for Fund and
. advises on all data protection matters. Record of processing
FAGEEEC L R | (RGN L G ]G activities and privacy notice set out how data is managed. | Data breaches reported to PB annually in G & Risk
NRO5 data held by the Fund in line with Data illegally shared resulting in fines and e e o e it s y High Possible 12 e Mar-23
P e e e Processes in place for dealing with data breaches and other December. Advisor
B data protection requests. DPIAs used. Regular officer
training.
B All aspects of dealing with an incident or cyber attack are set "
NROg | Fundis ”n"c‘ ge'sfz’f: L”e’raa’:“;'c‘ix"e“ed F“:g‘ 'ieﬁ;iﬁ'e;ﬁjﬁﬁ’af :;‘:“’;‘iwm s 90 | out in the Fund's disaster recovery/business continity plan Review annually High Unlikely 8 G""e':fj'\}';eof‘ Risk Mar-23
el Y P pay i and BANES' cyber security policy.
Employers and Funding
Erireeds oo e | o member data, late fines of is set out in the Fund's
NRO7. wwl’; Sfammr e ek ‘f‘ey and greather scrutiny by TPR. Employer Administration Strategy/SLA/MOU. Employer KPIs are | KPIs and TPR standards of data reported - R . Employer Services EmeE
LGPS ) [y [ dTPR 2 liabilities could be incorrect if data is recorded and data monitored against TPR standards of data. to PC/PB quarterly. B TPR Single Code of Practice Manager
eguiahonsian (RIS incorrect. Training Strategy includes employer training. DIPs in place. ingle Code of Practice
The employer is unable to meet their
N The Fund's policies on the financial stability of employers is
NRO8 \ega\nznd ahr::n::“:fbIl‘g[a:?:rrtnlghe;u"d Iz @i E:Jhnedr G S i set out in the FSS & ISS. Covenant framework and plan is in Annual review to PC. High Possible 12 Fundlr’\;gaf \/:Jruanon Mar-23
o el U ploy! - place. Quarterly review and update of issues. ag
covenants)
Investments
O G G e Review of internal control reports. Diversification of
Loss of assets or inability to trade due to investment portfolio (ISS). Quarterly service review with
N " N Higt Possible 12 -
NRO09 managers, custodian and other assets being inaccessible. Brunel and their suppliers, Brunel quarterly risk dashboard Quarterly monitoring reports to PC/IP. igh ossible Investments Manager Mar-23
investment suppliers (80B)
ISS and risk management strategy supports the Funding
Scheme cannot meet liabilities and employer | Strategy. FRMG & Investment Panel monitor performance X . -
- 1 D D iarterly monitoring reports to PC/IP Critical Possible 15 =
NR10 allicicleanlinvest eotietuins contributions could rise. and markets. Professional advice supports decision making Qu i itoring rep! i oeene Ransosy Magzs
(Mercers). Periodic strategic reviews carried out. Stagflation
Weakening sterling
. Affects the Fund’s ability to achieve its own
NR11 Brunel fails to deliver its objectives to investment objectives and/or implementing Brunel governance framework (client group, oversight board) | Brunel report and dashboard reported to High Fasslis 12 Investments Manager Mar-23
clients in terms of service delivery e and Avon's Brunel working group. PC quarterly.
ISS/RI Policy. Brunel's climate change policy and approach
Fail t hi W " N N
l;‘ :‘(:i:‘:z [\:vjlgeedcfrbomsa 'DTH ke e e to investing. Use of professional advice. Strategic Quarterly monitoring reports to PC/IP.
NR12 " i L i Sy partnerships (IGCC) who are developing investment Annual RI report, TCFD report. FRC Medium Possible 9 Investments Manager Mar-23
accordance wl C imate change : frameworks for climate risks. Policy advocacy work. Periodic Stewardship Code.
BUSHUES strategic reviews.
NR13 Loss of capital or income on treasury Delayed return of principle or investment B&NES manage Treasury management policy on APF's Annual treasury management report to Vsl Unlikely 6 Investments Manager Mar-23
investments income. behalf in consultation with treasury management advisors. PC.
Liability driven investing- regulatory Maintain collateral and buffer at levels to withstand
pressure and/or reputational risk leads Fund's LDI strategy may have to be significant/rapid move in rates/inflation. Set hedge P & FRVG . »
o : monitor quarterly. Critical Py ible 15 UK gilt ket t -
L to managers withdrawing from the unwound or inability to increase hedge ratio. triggers/hedge ratio at a level that can be adeqautely itor qu 4 o oeene gfit market environmen s e Mages
market collateralised.




¥21 abed

Liquidity levels within the Fund are

Being forced to sale liquid assets in order to
meet collateral and private market calls.

Maintain collateral and buffer at levels to withstand
significant/rapid move in rates/inflation. Collateral policy in

NR15 insufficient to support investment and | Could lead to changes in asset allocation | place to enable decisions around source of funds. Cashflow IP & FRMG monitor quarterly. Critical Possible 15 High stress market conditions Investments Manager Mar-23
risk management strategies which means investment return objective is monitoring covers all other cashflows and updated
no longer achievable. continuously.
Finance
Monthly monitoring of cashflow. Forecast inflows and
NR16 Cashflow profile is maturing Not enough cash in bank account tomeet | o,y “aise with Investments Team to ensure sufficient | Cashflow monitoring quarterly to PC/PB. Critical Unlikely 10 Finance & Systems Mar-23
pension payments. funds are available. Manager
Monthly reconciliations of contributions, manager review and
. - action. Contributions are reviewed quarterly and sent to "
NR17 Late/incorrect contributions from Cashflow, employer funding position, default Mercers to update funding monitor tool. FRS process review Late payers are monitored and reported to or Faseisn 6 Finance & Systems Mar-23

employers

(exiting employer/covenant) TPR breach.

contributions annually. Larger employers pre pay
contributions.

PC/PB periodically.

Manager




Appendix 2

Risk Management Policy

Avon Pension Fund

INTRODUCTION

The Avon Pension APF (APF) Committee must ensure robust risk management is in place, to
enable compliance with regulations and manage risks faced by the APF. The Investment
Panel strengthens risk management regarding investment issues.

The APF has a fiduciary duty to manage risk, to protect its employees, members, and assets.
The APF acknowledges that risk is inherent in pension management, and that robust risk
control involves management of complex trade-offs. Seeking to eliminate risk typically
causes indirect problems such as cost escalation or the emergence of new risks.

The APF will adopt best practice risk management to support a structured approach to
managing risks, embedded in operational management and governance. The over-arching
objective is to embed risk management into the processes and culture of the APF to help it
achieve its objectives and enhance service quality.

OBJECTIVES
The APF’s seeks to:

e integrate risk management into its day-to-day activities, for all employees and
partners.

e encourage a culture of openness which surfaces risks so they can be managed.
maintain a robust framework for identification, assessment and management of risk,
and its reporting and recording.

e ensure consistent application of APF’s risk management framework across all
activities, including projects and partnerships.

KEY MECHANISMS FOR DELIVERY
The APF has identified key mechanisms through which risk management will be delivered:

maintain clear roles and responsibilities in the APF.
create a culture of cross-team working, to openly communicated and shared.
ensure risk management is explicitly considered in all policy decisions, strategies, and
projects, e.g. committee reports, strategy documents, delegated decisions.
¢ maintain a single APF risk register assessing each risk for likelihood and impact with
mitigating controls.
review each risk at least quarterly.
ensure there is appropriate leadership and risk monitoring of key projects.

The risk register reflects where the relevant risk is addressed and how it is reported to the
Pension Committee and Pension Board.

Page 125



Appendix 2

Process for Review and Update of the Risk Register

e Therisk register identifies risks which could have material impact on the APF in terms
of service, value, reputation, or compliance. And it sets out mitigating actions.

e The risk register is reviewed quarterly by APF management and reported to the
Pension Committee and Pension Board every quarter.
All risks are also reviewed when there has been a material change to the risk.

¢ Risks fall into the following categories, owned by the relevant member of the APF

management team:

Category of Risk Risk Owner
Administration Pensions Managers
Regulatory Technical & Compliance Advisor
Governance Governance & Risk Advisor
Employers (Funding) Funding & Valuation Manager
Employers (Data) Employer Services Manager
Investments Investments Manager
Finance Finance & Systems Manager

Roles & Responsibilities

e Risk Owners are responsible for day-to-day management of risks in their areas,
ensuring the agreed control framework is in place and operating effectively.

e Eachriskis reviewed quarterly or when facts change the impact / probability of the
risk. Any changes should be agreed through the quarterly Managers’ Meeting.

e The Head of Pensions is responsible for overseeing the work of risk owners and
ultimately agreeing any changes to the risk register.
- The detailed work, e.g. development of the risk framework, ensuring team leaders
identify and manage risks, is delegated to the Governance & Risk Advisor.
- The Governance & Risk Advisor also ensures the risk register is accurately updated,
with reports prepared for Pension Committee & Pension Board.

e Committees & Boards:
- The Pensions Committee is responsible for ensuring risks are effectively managed. It
reviews the risk register at each quarterly meeting.
- The Investment Panel focuses on investment risks and makes recommendations to
the Pension Committee and risk owners.
- The Pension Board has an independent oversight role, to ensure the overall risk
framework is robust and compliant with regulations.

Page 126



	Agenda
	7 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING: 4th October 2022
	8 External Audit - Update
	Appendix 1 - External Audit Report to Pensions Board 21-22

	12 Internal Audit Update
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	13 Internal Audit APF Cyber Essentials Review
	Local Pension Board IA Cyber Review Dec 2022
	Exempt Appendix 1

	14 Breaches Report
	Appendix 1- Summary Breaches Log 2022
	Appendix 2 - Breaches Policy 2022

	15 Statutory Reporting and Year End
	16 Update on Legislation
	17 Risk Management Update - Risk Register
	Appendix 1 - Risk Register Nov 2022
	Appendix 2 - Risk Management Policy - Final Nov 2022




